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G EO R(~ E D EM ENT 
M AYO R 

B O S S IE R C ITY, LO U IS IA N A 

M em bers of the City Council 
City of Bossier City, Louisiana 

M ay 10, 1999 

6eo I~gNTO N ROAD 
POST O FrlCE BO X 5337 

BOSS IER CITY, LA 71171-fi337 

Indicators of this growth are the sustained increase of our Sales Tax, Building Perm it fees 
and Occupational License tax collections over 1997. Bossier M edical Center's financial 
difficullies continue. An election to consider a proposal to sell the Center was held on 
M ay 1, 1999, at which time Bossier City voters approved the sale. 

The last quarter of 1998 saw the opening of Casino M agic's 200-room hotel. The Isle of 
Capri Casino's 300-room hotel is scheduled to open in the 2na quarter of 1999

. The 
construction of an 18-hole golf course and housing developm ent and construction of our 
14,000 seat m ultipurpose arena are well underw ay. 

This unprecedented growth necessitates that we aggressively pursue expansions and 
im provem ents to our infrastructure. To this end the expansions of our water and sew er 
plants will com e on line in m id-1999. The Arthur Ray Teague Parkway from M cDade to 
ttam ilton Road is scheduled for com pletion in late 1999. These m ust remain top 
priorities if we are to successfully and orderly m anage our gr owth. 

"/'here is nothing on the horizon to indicate that our growt h will not continue. This 
growth w ill also necessitate that we carefully m onitor our receipts and expenditures so 
that taxpayers are receiving the m axim um value for their tax dollars. O ur City Council 
continues to effectively perform their check and balance function to insure that this 
happens. 

V 



M em bers of the City Council 
City of Bossier City, Louisiana 
M ay 10, 1999 
Page 2 

W e look forward to fiscal year 1999 as another year of productive and harm onious 
partnership with the Council as we continue our efforts to provide the citizens of our 
growing community with the services and quality of life they deserve. 



CITY OF BOSSIER CITY 
P 0 BO X 5337 

BO SSIER CITY, LO UISIANA ?It71 ]5337 

The Honorable George Dem ent, M ayor 
and M em bers of the City Council 

City of Bossier City, Louisiana: 

M ay 10, 1999 

In compliance w ith Section 4.06, paragraph 7 of the City Charter, the com prehensive annual financial 
report for the City of Bossier City, Louisiana (the "City") for the year ended December 31, 1998, is 
subm itted herewith. This document is the official comprehensive publication of the City's financial 
position at Decem ber 31, 1998, and of the results of operations for the year ended Decem ber 31, 1998, for 
all funds and account groups of the City. 

This report was prepared by the City 's Finance Department. Responsibility for both the accuracy of the 
presented dala and the completeness and fairness of the presentation, including all disclosures, rests with 
the City. The report com plies in all m aterial respects to the Governm ental Accounting Standards Board 
authoritative promulgations. The notes to the financial statements explain the City 's accounting policies, 
basis of accounting, funds, and accounts used, as well as other significant accounting infornlation. These 
notes are an integral part of this report. 

The report includes all entities or organizations that are required to be included in the City's reporting 
entity. The basic criterion for determ ining whether a governm ental departm ent, agency, institution, 
com m ission, public authority, or other govern mental organization should be included in a governm ental 
unil's reporting entity is financial accountability . Financial accountability includes tile appointment of a 
voting majority of the organization's governing body and the ability of the primary government to impose 
its will on the organization or if there is a financial benefit/burden relationship. In addition, all 
organization which is fiscally dependent on the prim ary  govern m ent should be included in its reporting 
entity. 

]'here are several agencies that provide services to City residents and are included in the financial 
statements of the City as discrete component units because they are legally separate from the City. These 
enlilies are: 

City Court of Bossier City 
Bossier City M arshal's Office 
M etropolitan Planning Com m ission 
Bossier Public Trust Financing Authority 

VI 



Tile Honorable George Dem ent, M ayor 
and M em bers of the City Council 

M ay 10, 1999 

The com prehensive annual financial report is presented in three sections: introductory, financial, and 
statistical. The introductory section includes this transm ittal letter, the governm ent's organizational chart, 
and a list of principal officials. The financial section includes the general purpose financial statements, lhe 
combining and individual fund and account group financial statements and schedules and supplementary 
data, as well as the auditors' report on the financial statem ents. The statistical section includes selected 
financial and dem ographic inform ation, generally presented on a m ulti-year basis. 

The City provides the following services as authorized by its charter: public health and safety, streets, 
sanitation, water and sewerage, planning and zoning, recreation, and general administrative services. 

ECONOM IC CO NDITION AND O UTLO OK 

Barksdale A ir Force Base, w hich currently em ploys over 7,000 people in the area, remains as viable and 
active as it has in the past. New construction and continued talks of additional m issions and m ission 
expansion are indicators that the base will remain an integral part of our community. 
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The ttonorable George Dem ent, M ayor 
and M embers of the City Council 

M ay 10, 1999 

M AJOR INITIATIVES 

Current 

Construction of the Arthur Ray Teague Parkway, Phase llI, is ahead of schedule and may be completed by 
the end of 1999. Our Northeast Sewer Treatment Plant is substantially complete now, and our W ater 
Treatment plan upgrade is going well with a planned project completion in May of 1999. Construction of 
the City's 14,000 seat m ulti-purpose arena is underway and engineering to im prove water distribution is 

near com pletion, 

Future 

FINANCIAL INFORM ATION 

Accounting System and Budgetary Control 

In developing and evaluating the City's accounting system , consideration is given to the adequacy of 
internal accounting controls. Internal accounting controls are designed to provide reasonable, but not 
absolute, assurance regarding: (1) the safeguarding of assets agains! loss from unauthorized use or 
disposition; and (2) the reliability of financial records for preparing financial statements and maintaining 
accountability for assets. The concepl of reasonable assurance recognizes that: (1) the cost of a control 
should not exceed the benefits likely to be derived; and (2) the evaluation of costs and benefits requires 
estimates and judgments by management. 

All internal control evaluations occur within the above framework. W e believe that the City's internal 
accounting controls adequately safeguard assets and provide reasonable assurance of proper recording of 

financial transactions. 

The accounting records for general governm ental operations are m aintained on a m odified accrual basis 
with the revenues being recorded when measurable and available and expenditures being recorded when 
the liability is incurred. Accounting records of the City's proprietary funds are m aintained on the accrual 
basis. 

Budgetary control is m aintained at the subclass level by the encum brance of balances w ith purchase orders 
before their release lo vendors. Purchase orders which would result in an overrun of a budget allocation, 
after considering fund surpluses or deficits, are rejected by the accounting system and are not processed 
until additional funds are available. M onthly budget reports are prepared for management's use in 
controlling and m onitoring the approved budget. Open encum brances are reported as reservations of fund 
balance at Decem ber 3 l, 199g. 



The Honorable George Dem ent, M ayor 
and M embers of the City Council 

M ay 10, 1999 

Assessed valuations of $243,058,780 represented an increase of 7,7% over the preceding year. Allocations 
of property tax levy by purpose (tax rate per $1,000 assessed value) for 1998 and 1997 are as follows: 

Purpose 

General Fund - unrestricted 
General Fund - restricted for Fire and Police Departm ents 

Expenditures in the General Fund totaled $25,375,376 
am ount of expenditures in 1998 by general governm enta 

General governm ent 
Solid waste 
Public safety 
Highways and streets 
Culture and recreation 
City Court and M arsha 

6.90 
19.48 

26.38 

1997 

6.90 
9.48 

26.38 

in 1998, an increase of 3.6%  over 1997. The 
function is show n in the follow ing tabulation 

1998 

A m ount 

$ 6,589,604 
1,856,190 
13,968,245 
825,058 

1,349,568 
786.711 

Percent 
of Total 

Increase 

(Decrease) 
From 1997 

296,275 
(15,815) 
676,912 
(58,718) 
(33,205) 
24,270 

00.0% $ 889,719 

Total General Fund expenditures increased due prim arily to additional personnel, repairs and maintenance 
cost increases, and increases in w orker's com pensation expenditures. 

Fund balance in the General Fund was m aintaiued at an adequale level. The General Fund fund balance 
experienced an increase of $182,94'3 bringing the total fund balance to $4,572,646 at December 31, 1998, 
which represents 18.0%  of 1998 expenditures. 

x 



The t lonorable G eorge Dem ent, M ayor 
and M embers Of the City Council 

M ay 10, 1999 

The following paragraphs are highlights of the activities of the funds and account groups controlled by or 
dependent upon the City. Significant financial events and changes in financial reporting practices are also 
reflected. 

G eneral G overnm ental Functions 

The General Fund is the general operating fund of the City and is used to account for all financial 
resources not accounted for in other funds. The following disclosures of general governm ental functions 
reflect those operating activities recorded ill the General Fund. Revenues and other financing sources for 
general governmental functions totaled $25,609,921 in 1998, an increase of 2.7% over 1997. General 
properly and sales taxes, revenues from sanitation charges, licenses and perm its, and intcrgovernmental, 

which represent the four major general governmental revenue sources of the City, produced 74.2% of 
general revenues com pared to 77.3%  last year. The am ount of revenues from various sources in 1998 is 
shown in the follow ing tabulation: 

R evenues and O ther 
Financing Sources 

Taxes 
l,icenses and perm its 
lntergovernm eutal 
Fines and penalties 
Racing Com m ission - Louisiana 

D ow ns 
Video Poker 
Interest 
Sanilation cbarges 
M iscellaneous 

Tola] revenues 
Transfers in 

Total revenues and other 
financing sources 

1998 

A m ount 

13,861,276 
1,903,456 
1,590,529 
998,030 

325,271 
431,185 
88,615 

1,642,548 
1,234,272 

22,075,182 
3,534,739 

Pereenl 
of Total 

54.2%  
7.4 
6.2 
3.9 

1.3 
1.7 
0.3 
6.4 
4.8 
86.2 
13.8 

Increase 

(Decrease) 
From 1997 

(426,976) 
59,031 
76,432 

287,926 

21,967 
257,850 
55,503 
2,637 

(5,096) 
329,274 
334,388 

00.0% $ 663.662 

The category showing one of the m ost significant changes from 1997 was fines and penalties revenues 
which increased in 1998 primarily from a newly im posed fine on underage persons attem pting to board a 
riverboat. In 1997, tile City again began recording video poker revenue in tile General Fund to compensate 
for increased salary and benefit costs. In 1998, the General Fund includes a full year of video poker 
revenue resulting in a significant increase in revenues. Tax revenue in the General Fund decreased due to 
increased funding requirem ents for the City's Firemen's and Policem cn's Pension and Relief Funds. 

x 



]'he Honorable George Dem ent, M ayor 
and M em bers of the City Council 

M ay 10, 1999 

At Decem ber 31, 1998, there was no general obligation debt recorded in the financial statem ents of the 
City. Tables 6 to t0C of this report present more detailed information about the debt position ofthc City. 

Pension Plans 

The City and the State of Louisiana collectively have six pension plans to provide substantially all full- 
tim e City em ployees w ith retirem ent, death, and disability benefits. Employees, other than fire, police, 
and Bossier M edical Center, arc covered under the M unicipal Em ployees' Retirem ent System of 
Louisiana. The City contributes 3.25%  of eligible earnings to the state for adm inistration of this system . 

Em ployees of the Bossier M edical Center are eligible for coverage in the Bossier M edical Center 
Fmployee's Pension Fund, which is adm inistered commercially. The plan is noncontributory and is 
funded on a current basis. 

City-adnlinistered Fire and Police Pension and Relief Funds currently serve 160 active and retired 
mem bers. These pension plans were established by state statutes without providing for adequate levels of 
contribution to fund the benefits offered by the plans. The latest actuarial valuation, dated January i, 
1998, indicated that the unfunded actuarial accrued liability for active and retired employees covered by 
these plans is $58,270,203. According to the latest actuarial report, the estimated annual contribution 
required to pay norm al cost and to fund the unfunded prior serv ice cost over a 30-year period from 1983 is 
approximately $4,902,834. 

The unfunded actuarial liability of the Firemen's and Polieemen's Plans increased more than expected this 
year due to salary increases which are passed on to retirees in the form of increased benefit paym ents. 
Generally, the unfunded actuarial liability of these plans can be expected to increase for the next few years 
before beginning to decrease. G rowth in these num bers should not be viewed as an indication of 
underfunding as the City continues to keep the plans actuarially sound by m aking the required 
coutributions. 

A one-half cent sales tax was approved by the voters in 1982 w ith a portion of the tax dedicated to 
liquidate the unfunded liabilities of the Fire and Police Pension and Relief Funds over 30 years. 

Cash M anagem ent 

The City has a cash m anagement program which consists of pooling cash and investm ents for all funds of 
the City except the peusion trust funds. A vailable cash was invested in obligations collateralizcd by 
instrum ents issued by the United States Government or United States Governm ent agencies created by an 
act of Congress or ir~sured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation. The total am ount of interest 
earned during 1998 was $7,135,006. This was $673,825 more than interest earned during 1997. 

XIV 



3"he 1 lonorable G eorge Dem ent, M ayor 
and M em bers of the City Council 

M ay 10, 1999 

Special Revenue Funds 

Special revenue funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources. The total revenues 
of $12,462,943 from these sources for 1998 reflects a net decrease of 28.8% from 1997. Sales and use 
taxes, riverboat gam ing, video poker, intergovernm ental revenues and interest incom e generated 96.4% of 
the total 1998 revenues compared to 98.6% in 1997. Sales tax revenues of $3,353,646 were recorded in 
three special revenue funds established for the purposes of constructing and operating two new fire 
stations and a training facility, maintaining and operating the City jail and municipal buildings, and repair 
and maintenance of streets and drainage. Riverboat gam ing revenue of $4,852,821 was received during 
1998 as part of the agreement with the three riverboats operational during 1998. These funds were 
accumulated until tile $15,000,000 base amount created by ordinance was attained. A subsequent 
ordinance required that 50% of the revenue, after the accumulation of the $15,000,000 base, be used for 
water plant expansion and 50% added to the base until a base amount of $30,000,000 is attained. In 1998, 
$2,565,647 was transferred from the Riverboat Gam ing Special Revenue Fund to the water and sewage 
fire d to fund construction activities related to the w ater plant expansion. At l)ecem ber 31, 1998, the 
balance of the base amount is $30,747,722. lntergovernmeutal revenues of $1,811,196 consisted primarily 
of Com m unity Developm ent Block Grant m onies expended for program s designed to benefit low and 
moderate income residents and an allocation of $1,212,529 from the State of Louisiana for the operation of 
the Civic Center. The Civic Center, in its seventh full year of operation, generated total revenues of 
$1,496,161, primarily from the State grant and rental fees. Other special revenue funds were used to 
account for the Court W itness Fee Fund. 

D ebt Adm inistration 

llonded indebtedness activity for 1998, which consists of revenue bonds applicable to general city, water 
and sewerage, and M edical Center operations, is sum m arized in the follow ing table: 

Bonds payable at January 1, 1998 
N ew issue 
Debt retired 
Am ortization of gain on refunding 

$ 52,150,106 
39,435,730 
(3,180,000) 

117.723 

Bonds payable at December 31, 1998 $ 88,523,559 

X 



The tlonorable George Dement, M ayor 
and M em bers of the City Council 

M ay 10, 1999 

l'he operating revenues of the water and sewer system s have continued to im prove during 1998 due 
prim arily to increased service revenues. W ater operating expenses have increased due to increased repair 
and m ainlcnance costs. 

Com parative data for tile Bossier M edical Center and Em ergency M edical Services for the past two years 
is presented in the following tabulation: 

Bossier M edical Center 
Em ergency 

M edical Services 
1998 1997 1998 1997 

Gross operating revenues $ 46,411,214 48,319,731 2,121,861 1,889,669 

O perating expenses 49,391,030 

Operating income (loss) 

47.630.634 2,021,439 1,759,577 

689.097 

Nel income (loss) $ ___ ..~5,865,120) 254,919 

00.422 

26.07 

30.092 

49,472 

l)uring 1998, the City requested bids for the sale of Bossier M edical Center. As a result of this process, 
the citizens voted M ay 1 to accept the bid to sell the hospital. Net income for the Bossier M edical Center 
decreased in 1998 primarily due to a decline in patient, days, an increase in IbE averagc contractual 
discount percentage for third party and m anaged care payors, a decline in revenues from hospital services, 
the result of uncollectible receivables and the write off of approximately $2,300,000 of impaired assets 
based on the bid received for the sale of the hospital. The Em ergency M edical Services Fund operated at a 
net incoruc in 1998 due prim arily to an increase in collection efforls of out of town custom ers as well as 
growth in the outlying areas. 

Independent A udit 

O TH ER 1NFO R3~ ATIO N 

Section 3.10 of tile City Charter of Bossier City requires that the City Council designate annually a 
certified public accountant or firm of certified public accountants to provide an annual independent audit 
of every agency and departm ent of tile City. Tile City Council designated KPM G I,LP to m eet these 
requirem ents and their report follows as an integral com ponent of this report. 

The City is required to undergo an annual single audit in conform ity with the provisions of tile revised 
Siuglc Audit Act of 1996 and U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of State and 
Local Governments. Inform ation related to this single audit, including the schedule of federal financial 
assistance, findings and recom m endations, and auditors' reports on the iulernal control structure and 
compliance with applicable laws and regulations, are presented in a separate report. 

XV 



The Honorable George Dem ent, M ayor 
and M em bers of the City Council 

M ay 10, 1999 

Certificate of Achievem ent of Excellence 

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded a 
Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the City of Bossier City for its 
comprehensive annual financial report for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1997. 

In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence, a governm ental unit m ust publish an 
easily readable and efficiently organized comprehensive annual financial report, whose contents conform 
to program standards. Such reports m ust satisfy both generally accepted accounting principles and 
applicable legal requirem ents. 

A Certificate of Achievem ent for Excellence is valid for a period of one year only. W e believe our current 
report continues to conform to Certificate of Achievement for Excellence Program requirem ents, and we 
are subm itting it to GFOA to determ ine its eligibility for another certificate. 

Acknowledgm ents 

The preparation of this report could not be accom plished without the efficient and dedicated services of 
the entire slaff ofthe Finance Department and the assistance of the City's external auditors, KPM G LLP. 1 
would like to express m y appreciation to all m em bers of the Department who assisted and contributed to 
its preparation. 1 would also like to thank the M ayor and the m em bers of the City Council for their interest 
and support in planning and conducting the financial operations of the City in a responsible and 
progressive m anner. 
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Respectfully subm itted, 

Charles E. Glover 
Director of Finance 
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The Honorable George Dem ent, M ayor 
and M embers of the City Council 

M ay 10, 1999 

Risk M anagem ent 

The City m aintains a com bination of self-insurance and stop-loss coverage to m anage its risk of loss from 
worker's compensation claims, properly damage, theft, and claims against employees, l)uring 1998, tile 
City began participating in a health management organization and is no longer self-insured for group 
hospitalization, During 1998, the Insurance Fund deficit was elim inated by a payment of $1,l 00,000 from 
the Riverboat Gam ing special revenue fund. The retained earning in the Liability Insurance Fund 

improved by $166,741 during 1998. 

Capital Project Funds 

'llle capital project funds are used to account for the acquisition or construction of m(Ior capital facilities 
other than those financed by proprietary funds or trtlst funds. Expenditures for capital improvement 
projects in 1998 totaled $16,036,825. The primary sources of funding the City's capital improvement 
program are sales taxes and riverboat gam ing. 

The capital project fund balances, totaling $42,787,196 at December 31, 1998, were invested through the 
City's cash m anagement program in certificates of deposit and U .S. governm ent obligations. 

G eneral Fixed Assets 

The general fixed assets of the City are those fixed assets used in the performance of general governmental 
functions and exclude the fixed assets of enterprise funds. As of Decem ber 31, 1998, the general fixed 
assets of the City amounted to $52,600,574. This amount represents the original cost of the assets. 
l)epreeiation of general fixed assets is not recognized in the City's accounting system , nor is interest 

capitalized. 

Enterprise Funds 

Com parative data for the water and sewerage system for the past two fiscal years is presented in the 

follow ing tabulation: 

1997 
W ater Sewer W ater Sewer 

Gross operating revenues $ 4,540,409 4,945,864 4,197,120 4,777,599 

O perating expenses 3,?04,504 3,851,388
_  

3,329,909 3,937,802 

Operating income $ 835,905 1,094,476 867,211 839,797 
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The Com bined Financial Stalem ents include all funds and account groups 
of lhe City and are designed to provide an overview of the financial 
position and results of operations for the City as a w hole. Additional 
inform ation in the form of com bining and individual fund and accounl 
group statem ents an d schedules is included elsewhere in this report. 



1~100 Deposit Guaranty Tower 

333 Texas Street 
Shreveport, LA 71101-3692 

Independent A uditors' Report 

"/o the Honorable M em bers of the City Counc 
and the Honorable George Dem ent, M ayor 

City of Bossier City, Louisiana: 

W e have audited the accompanying general-purpose financial statements (except for tile combined 
financial statements - enterprise funds contained in exhibits 1, 4 and 5), the combining and individual 
governmenta l and fiduciary fund financial statements, the combining and individual internal service fund 
financial statements, and the general fixed assets and general long-term obligation account group 
schedules of the City of Bossier City, Louisiana (City), as of and for the year ended December 31, 1998, 
as listed in the accom panying table of contents. W e have also audited the Departm ent of W ater and 
Sewerage and Em ergency M edical Serv ices financial statem ents in the accom panying com bining 
enterprise fund financial statements (exhibits E-1, E-2, and E-3) as of and for the year ended December 3 l, 
1998. These financial statements and schedules are the responsibility of the City 's management. Our 
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements and schedules based on our audit. W e 
did not audit the financial statements of the Bossier Medical Center (Center) in the accompanying 
com bining enterp rise fund financial statements and the component unit Bossier Public Trust Finaucing 
Anthority (Authority), which statements reflect total assets of $36,937,657 and $13,435,188 as of 
December 31, 1998 and November 30, 1998, respectively, and total revenues of $46,411,214 and 
$1,050,163, respectively, for the years then ended. Those financial statements were audited by other 
auditors whose reports have been furnished to us, and our opinion on the accom panying financial 
statements and schedules, insofar as it relates to the am ounts included for the Center and the Authority, is 
based on the reports of the other auditors. 

W e conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and the standards 
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Com ptroller 
General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of m aterial m isstatem ent. Au audit 
includes exam ining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the am ounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates m ade 
by managem ent, as well as evaluating the overall financial statem ent presentation. W e believe that our 
audit and the reports of other auditors provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

M anagement of the Center was unable to provide its auditors with written representations regardh~g 
certain uncertainties and their presentation or disclosure in the Center's financial statements. A ccordingly, 
the scope of the other auditors' work was'not sufficient to enable them to express, and th ey did not 
express, an opinion on the Center's financial statem ents. As m ore fully described in Note 17 to the 
accom panying financial statem ents, the auditors of the Center also identified certain conditions th at raise 
substantial doubt about the Center's ability to continue as a going concern . W e w ere engaged to audit the 
combined financial statements - enterprise funds (contained iu exhibits 1, 4 and 5) and the combining 
enterprise fund financial statements (exh ibits E- 1, E-2, and E-3) as of and for the year ended December 31, 
]998. Because of the m atter discussed in the first sentence of this paragraph and the m ateriality of the 
assets, revenues and cash flows of the Center to the total assets, revenues and cash flows of the com bined 
financial statements --enterp rise funds (contained in exhibits 1, 4 and 5) and the combining enterprise fund 



financial statements (exhibits E-I, E-2, and E-3), we are unable to express, and we do not express, an 
opinion on the combined financial statements - enterprise funds (contained in exhibits 1, 4 and 5) and the 
combining enterprise fund financial statements (exh ibits E-I, E-2, and E-3) of the City as of and for the 
year ended Decem ber 31, 1998. 

In our opinion, based on our audit and the reports of other auditors, the general-purpose financial 
statem ents referred to ill the first paragraph of this report present fairly, in all material respects, the 
financial position of the City as of December 31, 1998, and the results of its operations and the cash flows 
of its internal service funds for the year then ended in conformity with generally accepted accounting 
principles. Also, in our opinion, the combining and individual govem mental and fiduciary fund financial 
statem ents, the com bining and individual internal service fund financial statem ents, and the general fixed 
assets and general long-term obligation account group schedules referred to above present fairly, in all 
m aterial respects, the financial position of each of the individual funds and account groups of the City as 
of Decem ber 31, 1998, and the results of operations of such funds and the cash flows of the internal 
serv ice funds for the year then ended in conform ity with generally accepted accounting principles. 
Further, in our opinion, the Department of W ater and Sewerage and Em ergency M edical Services financial 
statem ents referred to in the first paragraph of this report present fairly, in all m aterial respects, the 
financial position of each of these individual funds of the City as of December 31, 1998, and the results of 
operations and cash flows of those funds for the year then ended in conformity with generally accepted 
accounting principles. 

In accordance w ith Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued a report dated M arch 26, 1999, 
on our consideration of the City's intern al control over financial reporting and our tests of its com pliance 
with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grants. 

The schedule of funding progress and the year 2000 inform ation on pages 59 and 58, respectively, are not 
a required part of the general purp ose financial statements, but are supplem entary inIbrm ation required by 
tile Governmental Accounting Standards Board, and we did not audit and do not express an opinion on 
such inform ation. W e have applied to the schedule of funding progress certain lim ited procedures 
prescribed by professional standards, w hich consisted principally of inquiries of m anagem ent regarding 
the m ethods of m easurem ent and presentation of the schedule. W e were unable to apply certain of these 
limited procedures to the year 2000 information because of the nature of the subject matter underlying the 
disclosure requirem ents and because sufficiently specific criteria regarding the m atters to be disclosed 
have not been established. In addition, we do not provide assurance that the City is or w ill become year 
2000 compliant, that the City 's year 2000 remediation efforts will be successful in whole or in part, or that 
parties w ith which the City does business are or w ill become year 2000 com pliant. 

The accom panying inform ation in "the Introductory Section and the inform ation in the Statistical Section 
has not been audited by us, and accordingly we express no opinion on this inform ation. 

M arch 26, 1999, except for Note 17 
which is dated M ay 1, 1999 
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CITY OF BOSSIER CITY, LO[]ISIANA 

Combined Statement of Cash FIo~  - All Proprietary Fund "lype s 
and Discretely presented Component Unit 

Year ended December 31,1998 
with eompamflv~ tolals for year ended l)~cembe r 31, 1997 

Cash flows from operating activities: 
Operating income (loss) 
Adjustments to reconcde operating income 0oss) 
to net cash provided by ope rating activities: 
Depr~ iafion and amorfiz, afioa 
Provisions for bad debts 
W rite-off of cost in excess of acquired ne[ 
assets and abandoned construction project 

(Increase) decrease in assets: 
Accounts receivable 
iStbe t leceivabie 
[)tie from other funds 
Prepaid expe nse 
Inventories 
Other assets 

Increase (decrease) in liabilities: 
Accounts payable and accrued expo nses 
Accrued vacabo n 
Due to other funds 
Refundable deposits 
Accrued  claims 
Other liabi]ifes 

Net cash provided by operating aclivifes 

Cash flows flora noncapital financing activities: 
Principal pa id on revenue bond maturities 
Operating transfers out 

Nel cash used in noncapital financing 
activities 

Cash flows from capital and related financing aebvilies 
Acquisilion and construction of ca pital assets 
Contributions received for purchase of properly and 
equipo ~ent 

Principa l paid on revenue bond maturities 
Inlerest paid on revenue bonds 
Proceed s of revenue bo nds 

Net cash used in capita~ and related 
financing activities 

Cash flows from invesfng activities: 
Purchases of investmenls 
M aturities and sales of investments 
Interest received 

Nel cash provided by investing 
aefivi0es 

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 

Enterprise 
Funds 

Totals 
Internal (Memorandum Only) 
Service Primary Government 
Funds 1998 199T---  

4,585,424 
3,396161 I 

159,222 

(1,543,632) 
616,724 

55.574 
98,688 
2,008 

353,919 
105,720 

(41,783) 

0,63~) 
6,837,829 

(550.000) 

(550,00O) 

(17,956.434) 

2,9~2,g22 
(I,255,000) 
(I,206,119) 
4.685.730 

947,630 
1,559,096 

2,506,726 

(4,024,446) 
31,386.632 

(2,839) 

(483.752) 

(451,52i) 

381,495 

381,495 
299,267 

1,704,078 

4,300,178 
4,544,520 

77,651 

(5,552,402) 
(663,g73) 
165,000 
(200.351) 
(290,771) 
(243,733) 

(550,000 

(550,000) (550,000) 

2,q42,822 
1,255,000 
1,206,119 
4.685.730 

947,630 
,559,096 

(I,097,630 

8,74 

9,599 

3,115) 

1,429,238 
3.714,139 

2,506,726 706,715 2,284,90 

(3,642,951) 
31,685,899 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ 27.362.186 680,762 28,042,948 

Noncashtransacfions: 
Amo~i~ lion 

See accompe nying notes to combined financial statements 

271.423 

92,621 
31,593,278 

14,874) 
43.986 

69.984 



CITY O F BO SSIER CITY, LO U ISIANA 

Pension Trust Funds 

Com bined Statem ent of Changes in Plan Net Assets 

Year ended Decem ber 31, 1998 
with com parative totals for year ended Decem ber 31, 1997 

Additions: 
Sales taxes, net 
Contributions from City: 
Fire insurance prem ium s 
Em ployer's contributions 
City Court fines 
City liquor licenses 

Total contributions from City 

Em ployees" contributions 

Investm ent incom e: 
N et appreciation in m arket value of investm ents 
Interest incom e 

Total investm ent incom e 

qotal additions 

D eductions: 
Pensions and benefits 
M iscellaneous 

Total deductions 

N et increase 

Fund balances reserved for em ployees pension benefit 
Beginning of year 

Fre d of year 

See accom panying notes to com bined financial statem ents 

Exhibit 6 

1998 1997 

$ 4,727,683 3,297,828 

93,893 
851,812 
175,770 
5,694 

1,127,169 

23,812 

670,264 
565,114 

2,235,378 

8,114,042 

4,467,362 
50,380 

4,517,742 

88,917 
680,362 
131,865 
10,999 

912,143 

20,362 

454,042 
1,606,400 
2,060,442 

6,290,775 

4,346,326 
49,593 

4,395,919 

3,596,300 1,894,856 

25,083,823 23,188,967 

$ 28,680,123 25,083,823 
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CITY OF BO SSIER CITY, LOUISIANA 

Notes to Combined Financial Statements 

December 31, 1998 

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

The City of Bossier City, Louisiana (the "City"), was incorporated in 1907 and operates under a City 
Charter dated July 1, 1977, which provides for a strong M ayor-Council form of government. The 
City provides the following services as authorized by its charter: public health and safety

, streets, 
sanitation, water and sewerage, planning and zoning, recreation, and general adm inistrative services. 

Education and welfare are administered by other governmental entities. 

The basic criterion for determ ining whether a governmental department, agency
, institution, 

com m ission, public authority, or other governm ental organization should be included in a prim ary 
governmental unit's reporting entity for general purpose financial statements is financial 
accountability. Financial accountability includes the appointment of a voting majority of the 
organization's governing body and the ability of the primary govern ment to impose its will o11 the 
organization or if there is a financial benefit/burden relationship. In addition, an organization which 
is fiscally dependent on the prim ary  governm ent should be included in its reporting entity . 

D iscretely Presented Com ponent Units 

The component units columns in the com bined financial statem ents iuelude/he fiaancial data 
of the City 's component units. They are reported in a separate column to emphasize that they 
are legally separate from the City . 

M etropolitan Planning Com m ission 

The M etropolitan Planning Commission (Commission) is responsible for the orderly physical 
development of the City and the surrounding planning area. The Commission makes 
recommendations to the City Council and the Parish Police Jury. The Commission consists of 
nine members with four appointed by both the City and the Bossier Parish Police Jury , and one 
member is elected by joint action of the governing authorities. Although the Commission is 
legally separate, the City acts as its fiscal agent and has the ability to modify and approve its 
budget. The Commission serves the citizenry of the City of Bossier City. 

City Court of Bossier City 

(Continued) 



CITY OF BO SSIER CITY, LOUISIANA 

N otes to Com bined Financial Statem ents 

December 31, 1998 

City Court. The City Court serves the citizenry of the City . The financial statements of the 
City Court included in the accompanying financial statements are as of and for the fiscal year 
ended Decem ber 31, 1998. 

Bossier Cily M arshal's O ffice 

The Bossier City Marshal's Office (City Marshal) is an elected official. The City Marshal is 
fiscally dependent on the City . The City has the ability to modify or approve the budget which 
com es from the General Fund. There are certain funds collected as court costs, pursuant to 
state statute, which are under the control of the City M arshal. The City M arshal serves the 
citizenry of the City . The financial statements of the City M arshal included in the 
accompanying financial statements are as of and for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1998. 

Bossier Public Trust Financing Authority 

The Bossier Public Trust Financing Authority was created by a trust indenture, pursuant to 
state enabling legislation, which made the City the beneficiary . There are five trustees 
appointed by the City Council for term s of five years. In accordance with the term s of the trust 
indenture, the City has no power to transact business for the trustees nor to control or direct 
the actions of the trustees. The City is entitled solely to the benefits of the trust, and at the 
term ination of the trust it shall receive the residual of the trust. The City cannot access the 
organization's funds at will, although there is some ability to access them at the discretion of 
the Bossier Public Trust Financing Authority. The Bossier Public Trust Financing Authority 
serv es the citizenry of the City . The financial statements of the Bossier Public Trust Financing 
Authority included in the accompanying financial statements are as of and for the fiscal year 
ended November 30, 1998. 

The Commission does not issue separate financial statements. Their financial statements are 
included in this report and these financial statem ents can be obtained from the Finance 
Department, P. O. Box 5337, Bossier City , Louisiana 71171. Complete financial statements of 
the other individual component units may be obtained at the follow ing addresses: 

City Court of Bossier City 
P.O . Box 5337 
Bossier City, Louisiana 71171 

Bossier City M arshal's Office 
P.O . Box 5337 
Bossier City, Louisiana 71171 

Bossier Public Trust Financing Authority 
710 Benton Road 
Bossier City, Louisiana 71171 

(Continued) 



CITY O F BOSSIER CITY, LO UISIANA 

Notes to Combined Financial Statements 

Decem ber 31, 1998 

O ther R elated O rganizations 

Bossier H ousing Authority 

The Bossier Housing Authority was created by state statute, and it is legally separate from the 
City. The M ayor appoints the five commissioners; how ever, the City cannot impose its w ill on 
the Bossier Housing Authority since it does not have the ability to modify or approve the 
budget or overrule or modify the decisions of the commissioners. The Bossier Housing 
Authority is fiscally independent and there is no financial benefit or burden relationship with 
the City. Therefore, it is not included in the City 's financial statements. 

Industrial Park Fund 

The Industrial Park Fund was organized in 1976 as a joint venture between the City and the 
Bossier Parish Police Jury for the purpose of purchasing land and the development of an 
industrial park. 

The City has a 50 percent interest in the assets of the Industrial Park Fund. Both governing 
bodies share equally in the approval process for budgeting and financing activities. Advances 
by the City to the Industrial Park Fund have been expensed in the fund making the advance, 
and the City's equity interest in the net assets of the fund has not been recorded in the General 
Fixed Asset Account Group because it is immaterial. 

Condensed unaudited financial inform ation as of December 31, 1998, is as follows 

Total assets 

Balance Sheet Data 

Total fund balance 

Statem ent of Revenues, Expenditures 
and Changes in Fund Balance 

Revenues 
Expenditures 

Total 

588,987 

375,443 
1.960 

City's 
Share 

294,494 

294,494 

187,722 
980 

Excess revenues over expenditures 373,483 186,742 

Fund balance, January I, 1998 215.504 107.752 

Fund balance, December 31, 1998 $ 588,987 294.494 

(Continued) 



C ITY O F BO SSIER CITY , LO U ISIANA 

N otes to Combined Financial Statem ents 

December 31, 1998 

During 1998, the Industrial Park Fund was essentially inactive having completed its primary 
activity of prior years which consisted of funding the construction of a 420 foot road and a 
utility easement on behalf of an industrial company relocating to the Bossier City area. 
Complete financial statements of the joint venture may be obtained at the following address: 

Bossier Parish Police Jury 
P.O , Box 68 
Bossier City, Louisiana 71006 

The accounting policies of the City of Bossier City , Louisiana, conform to generally accepted 
accounting principles as applicable to governmental units. The accounting policies of the 
discretely presented component units are consistent with those of the City. The following is a 
summ ary of the more significant policies: 

(a) Basis of Presentation - Fund Accounting 

The accounts of the City are organized on the basis of funds or account groups, each of 
which is considered a separate accounting entity. The operations of each fund are 
accounted for with a separate set of self-balancing accounts that comprise its assets, 
liabilities, fund balance/retained earn ings, revenues and expenditures/expenses. The 
various funds are summarized by type in the financial statements. The following fund 
types and account groups are used by the City : 

G overnm ental Funds 

Go'cernmentai funds are "those through which m ost go'cernm enta~ functions of the City are 
financed. The acquisition, use, and balances of the City 's expendable financial resources 
and the related liabilities (except those accounted for in proprietary funds) are accounted 
for through governmental funds. A ll governmental funds are accounted for on a spending 
m easurement focus; that is, the m easurement focus is upon determ ination of changes in 
financial position, rather than upon net income determ ination. The following are tile 
City 's governmental fund types: 

General Fund - The General Fund is the general operating fund of the City. It is used to 
account for all financial resources except those required to be accounted for in another 
fund. 

Special Revenue Funds - Special revenue funds are used to account for the proceeds of 
specific revenue sources (other than major capital projects) that are legally restricted to 
expenditures for specified purposes. Special revenue funds at December 31, 1998, were 
State and Federal Grant, Court W itness Fee, Civic Center, Fire Improvem ents and 
Operations, Jail and M unicipal Buildings, Streets and Drainage, and Riverboat Gaming. 

(Continued) 



CITY O F BO SSIER CITY , LO U ISIAN A 

Notes to Com bined Financial Statem ents 

December 31, 1998 

Debt Service Funds" - The debt service funds are used to account for the accumulation of 
resources for, and the payment of, general long-term debt principal, interest, and related 
costs. The debt service funds receive a portion of all ad valorem and sales taxes paid to 
the City. 

Capital Project Funds" - Capital project funds are used to account for financial resources 
"to be used for the acquisition or construction of major capital facilities (other than those 
financed by proprietary funds and trust funds). 

Proprietary Funds 

Proprietai2,, funds are used to account for the City 's ongoing organizations and activities 
which are sim ilar to those often found in the private sector. All proprietary  funds and the 
pension trust funds are accounted for on a capital maintenance m easurement focus; that 
is, the measurement focus is upon determination of net income. The fonowing are the 
proprietary funds maintained by the City: 

Enterprise Funds - Enterprise funds are used to account for operations (a) that are 
financed and operated in a m anner sim ilar to private business enterprises - where the 
intent of the governing body is that the costs (expenses including depreciation) of 
providing goods or services to the general public on a continuing basis be financed or 
recovered primarily through user charges; or (b) where the governing body has decided 
that periodic determ ination of revenues earned, expenses incurred, and/or net incom e is 
appropriate for capital m aintenance, public policy, management control, accountability, 
or other purposes. The City's enterprise funds are the Department of W ater and 
Sewerage, Bossier M edical Center, and Emergency M edical Serv ices. 

The Department of W ater and Sewerage is operated as a self-sustaining utility of the City 
and is responsible for providing the residents of the City of Bossier City, Louisiana, w ith 
w ater and sew erage treatm ent. 

Bossier M edical Center is a m unicipal health care facility owned and operated by the City 
of Bossier City, Louisiana. The Bossier M edical Center is governed by a Board of 
D irectors which is appointed by the M ayor and approved by the City Council, The City 
Council approves and has the right to change the annual operating and capital budgets, if 
it so desires. The Board adm inisters the daily operations of the hospital within the 
budgetary and fiscal controls established by the City Council as a self-sustaining entity of 
the City . 

The Emergency M edical Services department is operated as a self-sustaining service of 
the City and is responsible for providing the residents of the City of Bossier City, 
Louisiana, with emergency m edical services. 

16 (Coutinued) 



CITY O F BO SSIER CITY, LO UISIANA 

Notes to Com bined Financial Statements 

Decem ber 31, 1998 

lnternal Service Funds - Internal service funds are used to account for the financing of 
services provided by one department of the City to other departments ou a cost- 
reim bursement basis. The City m aintains two internal service funds for workmen's 
compensation and general insurance coverage. 

Fiduciary Funds 

Fiduciary funds are used to account for assets held by the City in a trustee capacity or 
as an agent for individuals, private organizations, other governm ental units, and/or 
other fu nds. 

Pension Trust Funds - The City m aintains three retirem ent funds which are accounted 
for and reported as fiduciary fu nds since capital m aintenance is critical. These funds 
are the Firern en's Pension and Relief Fund, the Policem en's Pension and Relief Fund, 
and the Bossier M edical Center Peilsion Fund. 

Agency Funds - Agency fu nds are custodial in nature and do not present results of 
operations or have a m easurem ent focus. The Consolidated Sales Tax Fund accounts 
for the collection of a two and one-half percent city sales and use tax and the 
distribution of this tax to the various funds which account for operations or projects for 
which the tax was levied. This fu nd also accounts for the collection and distribution of 
sales taxes levied by the Bossier Parish School Board and various m unicipalities within 
the parish. The Riverboat Gam ing Agency Fund accounts for the receipt and 
distribution of funds received from  the riverboats and paid to other local governm ent 
agencies under the term s of the agreem ents with the riverboats. 

Account G roups 

Account groups are used to establish accounting control and accountability for the 
City's general fixed assets and general long-term obligations. The following are the 
C ity's account groups: 

General Fixed Assets Account Group - This account group is established to account for 
all fixed assets of the City, other than those accounted for in the proprietary funds. 

General Long-Term Obligation Account Group - This account group is established to 
account for all long-term obligations of the City except those accounted for in the 
proprietary funds, 

(b) Fixed Assets and Long-Term Liabilities 

The accounting and reporting treatment applied to the fixed assets and long-term 
liabilities associated w ith a fund are determ ined by its m easurem ent focus. All 
governm enta l funds are accounted for on a spending or "financial flow " m easurem ent 
focus. This means that only current assets and current liabilities are generally included 
on their balance sheets. This reported fund balance (net current assets) is cortsidered a 

(Continued) 



CITY O F BO SSIER CITY, LOUISIANA 

N otes to Com bined Financial Statem ents 

December 31, 1998 

measure of "available spendable resources." Governmental fund operating statements 
present increases (revenues and other financial sources) and decreases (expenditures and 
other financing uses) in net current assets. Accordingly, they are said to present a 
summ ary of sources and uses of"available spendable resources" during a period. 

Fixed assets used in governmental fund type operations (general fixed assets) are 
accounted for in the General Fixed Assets Account Group, rather than in govern mental 
funds. Public domain ("infrastructure") general fixed assets consisting of certain 
improvements including roads, bridges, curbs and gutters, streets and sidewalks, drainage 
systems, and lighting systems are not capitalized along with other general fixed assets. 
N o depreciation has been provided on general fixed assets, nor has interest been 
capflalized. 

A ll fixed assets are valued at historical cost or estim ated historical cost if actual historical 
cost is not available. Donated fixed assets are valued at their estimated fair value on the 
date donated. 

Long-lerm liabilities expected lo be financed from governmenlal funds are accounted for 
in the General Long-Term Obligation Account Group, not in the governmental funds. 
Long4erm liabilities accounted for in the General Long-Term Obligation Account Group 
are retired from the General Fund and debt service funds while long-term liabilities 
accounted for in the proprietary  funds are retired from the respective funds in which they 
are recorded. 

The two account groups are not "funds." They are concerned only with the measurement 
of financial position. They are not involved w ith m easurem ent of results of operations. 

Special reporting treatments are also applied to governmental fund prepaid expenditures 
to indicate that they do not represent "available spendable resources," even though they 
are a component of net current assets. Such amounts are generally offset by fund balance 
reserve accounts. 

Because of their spending measurement focus, expenditure recognition for governmental 
fund types is limited to exclude amounts represented by noneurrent liabilities. Since they 
do not affect net current assets, such long-term am ounts are not recognized as 
governm ental fund type expenditures or fund liabilities. They are instead reported as 
liabilities in the General Long-Term O bligation Account Group. 

All proprietary funds and pension trust funds are accounted for on a cost of services or 
"capital maintenance" measurement focus. This means that all assets (including fixed 
assets) and all liabilities (whether current or noncurrent) associated with tbeir activity are 
included on their balance sheets. Their reported fund equity (net total assets) is 
segregated into contributed capital and retained earnings components. Proprietary  fund 
type operating statements present increases (revenues) and decreases (expenses) in net 
total assets. 
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Depreciation of all exhaustible fixed assets used by proprietary funds is charged as an 
expense against their operations. Depreciation recognized on fixed assets acquired 
through intergovernmental grants, entitlem ents, or shared revenues externally restricted to 
capital acquisitions is allocated to contributed capital, while depreciation on fixed assets 
acquired with proprietary  fund resources is allocated to retained earnings. 

Accumulated depreciation is reported on the proprietary  fund balance sheets. 
Depreciation has been provided over the estimated useful lives using the straight-line 
method. The estimated useful lives are as follows: 

Buildings 
Structures: 
W ater reservoir and treatment plant 
Transmission and distribution system 

Equipment and vehicles 

(c) Basis of Accounting 

! 5-50 years 

10-60 years 
10-50 years 
3-20 years 

Basis of accounting refers to when revenues and expcnditures or expenses are recognized 
in the accounts and reported in the financial statem ents. Basis of accounting relates to 
tile tim ing of the m easurem ents m ade, regardless of the m easurem ent focus applied. 

The modified accrual basis of accounting is followed by all govern mental funds (General 
Fund, special revenue funds, debt service funds, agency funds, and capital prqieets 
funds). Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recorded when 
susceptible to accrual, i.e., both m easurable and available. Ad valorem taxes are 
considered "m easurable" at the tim e of levy whereas such item s as tobacco taxes arc 
considered "m easurable" when ill the hands of interm ediary collecting agencies and are 
recognized as revenue at that time. Available means collectible within the current period 
or soon enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current period. 

Expenditures are generally recognized under the modified accrual basis of accounting 
when the related fund liability is incurred. Exceptions to this general rule include (I) 
accum ulated unpaid vacation, sick pay, and other em ployee am ounts w hich are not 
accrued; and (2) principal and interest on general long-term debt which is recognized 
w hen due. 

In applying the susceptible to accrual concept to intergovernmental revenues, the legal 
and contractual requirements of the numerous individual program s are used as guidance. 
There are however, essentially two types of these revenues. In one, m onies m ust bc 
expended on the specific purpose or project before any amounts will be paid to Ihe City; 
~berefore, revenues are recognized based upon the expenditures recorded. In the other, 
monies are virlually unrestricted as to purpose of expenditure and are usually revocable 
only for failure to comply with prescribed com pliance requirements. These resources arc 
reflected as revenues at the tim e of receipt or earlier if the susceptible to accrual criteria 
are m et. 
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Licenses and perm its, charges for general governmental services, fines and penalties, 
Racing Comm ission revenues, video poker revenues, riverboat gam ing revenues, and 
miscellaneous other revenues (except investment earnings) are recorded as revenues 
when received in cash because they are generally not measurable until actually received. 
Taxes, charges for services, and investm ent earnings are recorded as earn ed since they arc 
measurable and available (see note 3 for property tax accrual policy). 

The accrual basis of accounting is used by the proprietary and pension trust funds. 
Revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are recognized when incurred. The 
reserv e method is used to account for bad debt expenses on enterprise fund receivables. 
Unbilled serv ice receivables of the Department of W ater and Sewerage Fund and 
Emergency M edical Services Fund are reflected in the accom panying financial statements 
at approximately $298,725 and $59,827, respectively, at December 31, 1998. 

The City applies all applicable Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) 
pronouncem ents in accounting and reporting for its proprietary  operations as w ell as the 
follow ing pronouncem ents issued on or before N ovem ber 30, 1989, unless lhose 
pronouncements conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements: Financial 
Accounting Standards Board Statements and Interp retations, Accounting Principles 
Board opinions, and Accounting Research Bulletins. 

(d) Net Putient Service Revenue and Reluted Receivables 

The Bossier M edical Center Hospital has agreements with third-party payors that provide 
for paym ents to the Bossier M edical Center Hospital at amounts different from its 
established rates. A summary of the paym ent arrangements w ith third-party payors 
follows. 

lnpalient acute care serv ices rendered to M edicare program beneficiaries are paid at 
prospectively determ ined rates per discharge. These rates vary  according to a patient 
classification system that is based on clinical, diagnostic and other factors. Inpatient 
nonacute services and certain outpatient serv ices related to M edicare beneficiaries are 
paid based on cost reimbursem ent methodologies. The Bossier M edical Center Hospital 
is paid for cost reimbursable item s at a tentative rate w ith final settlement determ ined 
after subm ission of annual cost reports by the Bossier M edical Center Hospital and audits 
thereof by the M edicare fiscal intermediary . 

Inpatient services rendered to M edicaid program beneficiaries are paid at prospectively 
determ ined per diem rates. Outpatient services rendered to M edicaid program 
beneficiaries are reimbursed under a cost reimbursement m eth odology. The Bossier 
M edical Center Hospital is paid for cost reimbursable items at a tentative rate with final 
settlement determ ined after subm ission of annual cost reports by the Hospital and audits 
thereof by the M edicare fiscal interm ediary . 

The Bossier M edical Center Hospital also has entered into payment agreem ents with 
certain commercial insurance carriers, health maintenance organizations and preferred 
provider organiza tions. Payment methods under 
determ ined rates per discharge, discounts from 
determ ined per diem rates. 

these agreem ents include prospectively 
established charges and prospectively 
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The Bossier M edical Center Hospital grants credit to patients, substantially all of whom 
are local residents, under term s requiring timely repayment. The Bossier M edical Center 
Hospital does not require collateral or other security in extending credit to patients; 
however, it routinely obtains assignment of (or is otherwise entitled to receive) patients' 
benefits payable under their health insurance programs, plans, or policies (e.g., M edicare, 
Blue Cross, and commercial insurance policies). 

(e) Budgetary Data 

The City utilizes the following procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in 
the financial statements: 

(1) Prior to October 15, the M ayor submits to the City Council a proposed 
operating budget for the fiscal year commencing the follow ing January  1. The 
operating budget includes proposed expenditures and the means of financing 
them . 

(2) A public hearing is then conducted, after proper official journal notification, to 
obtain taxpayer comments. 

(3) Prior to December 15, the budget is legally enacted through passage of an 
ordinance. 

(4) The budget ordinance is structured sucb that revenues are budgeted by source, 
and appropriations are budgeted by department and by principal object of 
expenditure. The City Charter provides that expenditures may not legally 
exceed appropriations on a departmental basis after considering fund surpluses 
or deficits. The Council m ay revise or am end the budget at its discretion 
during legally convened sessions. M anagement m ay amend the budget only 
below the department level. Amendm ents to the budget were made and 
adopted by the Council during 1998, 

(5) The City utilizes formal budgetary integration as a management control device 
for the General Fund, special revenue funds, and capital projects funds. This 
process is not employed for the debt service funds because effective budgetary 
control is achieved through general bond indenture provisions. 

(6) Comparison of budgeted and actual amounts as shown in Exhibit 3 in the 
accompanying financial report includes the General Fund and those special 
revenue funds which are included in the annual operating budget (Civic 
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Center, Fire Improvem ents and Operations, Jail and M unicipal Buildings, and 
Streets and Drainage). Annual operating budgets are not prepared for the 
State and Federal Grant, Court W itness Fee, and Riverboat Gam ing special 
revenue funds, but rather these funds are budgeted on a project basis. The 
capital budget ordinances which encompass the capital projects funds present 
cumulative as opposed to annual budget am ounts and thus budget and actual 
comparisons are not reported in the accompanying financial report for these 
fu nds. 

(7) The basis of accounting applied to budgetary data presented is substantially 
consistent with the appropriate basis of accounting for each fu nd type for 
which an ann ual budget is prepared. Appropriations which are not expended 
lapse at year-end, except appropriations for capital improvements, which do 
not lapse until the purpose of the appropriation has been accomplished or 
abandoned. 

(8) The City is legally required to prepare ann ual operating budgets for the 
Departm ent of W ater and Sewerage, Bossier M edical Center, and the 
Em ergency M edical Services. The annual operating and capital budgets of 
the Bossier M edical Center are prepared by the staff of the hospital and are 
then reviewed and approved by the City Council. The City is not, however, 
required to present an actual-to-budget comparison for the enterp rise funds. 
Budgets are not prepared for the internal service fu nds. 

09 Encumbrances 

Encum brance accounting, under which purchase orders, contracts, and other 
comm itments for the expenditure of funds are recorded in order to reserve that portion of 
the applicable appropriation, is employed in the governm ental funds. Open 
encumbrances are reported as reservations of fund balances since the comm itments will 
be honored through subsequent years' budget appropriations. Encum brances do not 
constitute expenditures or liabilities. 

(g) Investments" 

For all funds investments are stated at fair value based on quoted market prices. The 
investments at December 31, 1998, were prim arily U .S. government and U .S. government 
agency securities (see note 2 for the City's investment policy). 

(It) Prepaid Items 

Prepaid item s consist of item s such as prepaid insurance and other prepaid expenditures, 
The cost is recorded as an asset at the time such item s are purchased. The reserve for 
prepaid expenditures in governmental fund types is equal to the amount of prepaid 
expenditures to indicate a portion of the fund balance is not available for future 
expenditure. 
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Inventories are valued at cost (first-in, first-out), Inventories in the General Fund consist 
of expendable supplies held for consumption. The cost is recorded as an asset at the time 
individual inventory items are purchased and charged as an expenditure when used. No 
reserve for inventories is provided since no m inim um amounts of inventories are required 
to be maintained. Inventories in the enterprise funds consist of repair materials, spare 
parts, drugs, and m edical supplies. 

The Department of W ater and Sewerage of the City of Bossier City requires that its first 
time water and sewer customers or customers not in good standing place a deposit before 
service is rendered. If customers m aintain the status of good standing for one year, the 
deposits are returned. These m onies are not restricted by law and are generally used by 
the Department of W ater and Sewerage in meeting current operating cash requirements. 

The Sales Tax Department requires deposits of certain establishments involved in special 
events and before being allowed to selA alcohol. The deposits are used to offset 
delinquent tax bills or are returned upon the respective activity ceasing. 

Certain licenses are collected in advance; therefore, the rec ognition of revenue is deferred 
until the following year. 

(I) Contributions 

Contributions recorded in the Department of W ater and Sewerage Fund, the Emergency 
M edical Services Fund, and the Bossier M edical Center Fund include amounts advanced 
for aid in construction and other expenses paid or incurred on behalf of these funds by the 
City of Bossier City - General Fund and capital projects funds, various federal and state 
grants-in-aid of construction, and other contributions in aid of construction primarily 
from contractors and developers. The contributions or grants-in-aid of construction 
received do not reduce the cost basis of the respective assets acquired. Such 
contributions and grants are charged currently w ith the depreciation of the respective 
assets. 

City em ployees are granted vacation and sick leave in vary ing am ounts. The m axim um 
allowable accum ulation of vacation and sick leave is up to 30 days and 100 days, 
respectively. In the event of term ination, an em ployee is reimbursed for accumulated 
vacation days up to the maximum allowable accumulation. For financial reporting 
purposes, the City does not accrue vacation earned but not paid in the governmental funds 
since the liability will be funded from future resources. Vacation and sick leave are 
recorded as an expenditure when paid in govern m ental funds. The estimated liability 
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for unused vacation for governmental funds is recorded in the General Long-Term Debt 
Account Group. Accumulated vacation leave of proprietary funds is recorded as an 
expense and liability of those funds as it is earned by the employees. 

(n) Comparative Total Data 

Comparative total data for the prior year have been presented in the accompanying 
combined financial statements in order to provide an understanding of changes in the 
City's financial position and operations. However, comparative data (i.e., presentation of 
prior year totals by fund type) have not been presented in each of the statements, since 
their inclusion would make the statements unduly complex and difficult to read. Certain 
amounts relating to 1997 have been reclassified in the accompanying financial statements 
in order to conform with the 1998 presentation. 

(o) 7btal Columns on Combined Statemenes 

Total columns on the combined statements are captioned "Totals (M emorandum Only)" 
to indicate that they are presented only to facilitate financial analysis. Data in these 
colum ns do not present financial position or results of operations, in conform ity with 
generally accepted accounting principles. Neither is such data comparable to 
consolidation. Interfund eliminations have not been made in the aggregation of this data. 

]'he City of Bossier City, Louisiana, the Bossier M edical Center, and the State of 
Louisiana collectively have six pension plans which cover substantially all employees 
who meet certain length of service requirements. See note 9 for details of these plans. 

(q) Third-Party Payor Arrangements 

Bossier M edical Center participates in the M edicare and M edicaid program s as a provider 
of medical services to program beneficiaries. During the years ended December 31, 1998 
and 1997, approximately 49%  and 55% , respectively, of Bossier M edical Center's patient 
service charges were related to services provided to M edicare and M edicaid program 
beneficiaries. 

Laws and regulations governing the M edicare and M edicaid program s are complex and 
subject to interpretation. Bossier M edical Center believes that it is in compliance with all 
applicable law s and regulations and is not aware of any pending or threatened 
investigations involving allegations of potential wrongdoing. W hile no such regulatory 
inquires have been made, compliance with such laws and regulations can be subject to 
future government review and interpretation as well as significant regulatory  action 
including fines, penalties, and exclusion from the M edicare and M edicaid programs. 

Revenues derived from the Medicare program are subject to audit and adjustment by the 
fiscal intermediary and must be accepted by the United States Department of Health and 
Human Services before settlem ent am ounts becom e final. Revenues derived from the 
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Medicaid program are subject to audit and adjustment and must be accepted by the 
Department of Health and Hospitals of the State of Louisiana before settlement amounts 
become final. Estimated settlements for the years ended through December 31, 1996 for 
the M edicare and M edicaid program s have been reviewed by program representatives and 
adjustments have been recorded to correct for the changes required. These adjustments 
resulted in a decrease in net patient service revenue of approximately $678,000 in 1998. 

(r) Reserves 

Use of the term "reserv e" in describing governmental fund "Fund Balances" indicates 
that a portion of the fund balance is not appropriable for expenditures or is legally 
segregated for a specific future use. 

(s) lnterfund Transactions 

Interfund transactions that would be lreated as revenues, expenditnres or expenses if they 
involved organizations external to the City, such as routine em ployer contributions from 
the General Fund to the pension trust funds, are accounted for as revenues and 
expenditures or expenses in the funds involved. N onrecurring or nonroutine transfers of 
equity between funds and transfers of residual balances of discontinued funds are trcated 
as residual equity transfers. Residual equity transfers are reported as additions to or 
deductions from beginning fund balance for governmental funds. For proprietary funds, 
they are reported as an addition to or deduction from contributed capital. Transactions 
which constitute reim bursem ents of a fund for expenditures or expenses initially m ade 
from it which are properly applicable to another fund are recorded as expenditures or 
expenses (as appropriate) in the reimbursing fund and as reductions of the expenditure or 
expense in the fund that is reimbursed. Operating transfers to the appropriate funds and 
legally authorized transfers from the Bossier M edical Center to olber funds are 
distinguished from revenues, expenses, or expenditures in financial statem ents. These 
transfers are reported in the "Other Financing Sources (Uses)" section in the statement of 
revenues, expcndi'tures, and changes in fund balance (governmenlal funds) and in the 
"Operating Transfers" section in tile statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in 
retained earnings (proprietary funds). 

(0 ProperO, Taxes 

Property taxes attach as an enforceable lien on property as of January  1. Taxes are 
norm ally levied in Novem ber of each year and are due on or before Decem ber 31. The 
City bills and collects its own property taxes. City property tax revenues are recognized 
when levied to the extent that they are available. Property taxes levied for tile current 
year are considered available in the current year as they are budgeted for and expected to 
be used to finance expenditures within the year levied. In addition, historically 96 
percent of the taxes have been collected within 60 days after the due date. Available 
property taxes are recognized as current year revenues in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles as applicable to governmental units. 
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The City currently levies the maximum tax allowed by state statutes and the Louisiana 
Constitution for general governmental services other than taxes for special purposes (such 
as the funds designated for the Fire and Police Departments) or the payment of long-term 
debt. The City is permitted  to levy taxes up to 10%  of the assessed property valuation for 
each specified purpose for the payment of principal and interest on long-tern l debt after 
approval by the voters of the City. 

(u) Grants From Other Governmental Agencies 

Federal and state governmental agencies represent an important source of supplem entary 
funding to finance housing, employm ent and construction program s, and other activities 
beneficial to the community. These funds, primarily in the form of grants, are recorded in 
the General Fund, special revenue funds, capital projects funds, and enterprise fimds. A 
grant receivable is recorded when the City has a right to reimbursem ent under the related 
grant. The grants norm ally specify the purpose for w hich the funds m ay be used and are 
subject to audit by the granting agency or its representative. 

(v) Cash and Cash Equivalents 

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the City considers each fund's equity 
investment in the pooled cash account and all highly liquid debt instruments (including 
restricted assets) with an original maturity of three months or less when purchased to be 
cash equivalents. 

(w) Postretirement Benefits 

The City provides certain postretirement benefits to its employees as described in note 
14. 

(x) Self-Insurance Claims 

The City is self-insured for workm en's com pensation coverage. Self-insured  claim s arc 
recorded in the City's Internal Serv ice funds in accordance w ith Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board Statem ent Number 10. 

Incurred but not reported claims are recorded as liabilities in the Insurance Fund and 
Liability Insurance Fund. An estimate for these claims is provided by a third party 
adm inistrator based on historical experience. 

(2) Cash and Investments 

City of Bossier City (Primary Government) 

A ll deposits of the City are held by area financial institutions. At Decem ber 31, 1998, tile carrying 
amount of the City's deposits was $73,425,813, and the bank balance was $76,542,979. This 
difference is due to the outstanding checks at December 31, 1998. 
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The City m aintains a pooled cash and investments account for all funds of the City except the 
Firemen's Pension and Relief Fund, the Polieemen's Pension and Relief Fund, Bossier M edical 
Center Fund, and the Bossier M edical Center Pension Fund. Each fund's equity in pooled cash and 
investments is presented as "Cash and Cash Equivalents" on the combined balance sheet. Interest 
incom e is allocated "to each respective individual fund m onthly based on each fund's average daily 
cash balance. 

Tile City's deposits at year end were entirely covered by federal depository insurance or were 
collateralized with securities held by the City's agent (one of its custodial banks) in the City's 
nam e. Statutes require that securities pledged for deposits of the City be held by a bank other than 
the pledging bank. 

Slate statutes authorize the City to invest in United States bonds, treasury notes, government 
agencies' securities, certificates and time certificates of deposit of state banks organized under the 
law s of Louisiana and national banks having their principal office in the State of Louisiana, or 
m utual or trust fund institutions which have underlying investments consisting solely of and lim ited 
to securities of/he United States government or its agencies. In addition, the Firemen's Pension and 
Relief Fund, the Policemen's Pension and Relief Fund, and the Bossier M edical Center Pension 
Fund m ay invest in bonds of the State of Louisiana or of the City of Bossier City. l)uring 1998, the 
City invested in certificates of deposit, U .S. government and U .S. government agency securities, and 
mortgage-backed securities and mutual funds backed by government agency securities. 

"]'he City's investm ents are categorized below to give an indication of the level of risk assum ed by 
the City at December 31, 1998. Category  1 includes investments that are insured or registered or for 
which the securities are held by the City or its agent in the City's nam e. Category 2 includes 
uninsured and unregistered investm ents w ith securities held by the counterparty's trust departm ent 
or agent ira the City's name. Category  3 includes uninsured and unregistered investments w ith 
securities held by the counterparty, or by its trust department or agent, but uot in the City's uam e. 
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U .S. governm ent and 
U .S. governm ent 
agency securities 

M ortgage-backed 
securities in 
Firem en's Pension 
and Relief Fund 

M utual Fund in 
Bossier M edical 
Center Pension 
Fund 
Total investm ents 

Total deposits 

Total cash, cash 
equivalents, and 
investm ents, 
including 
restricted cash 
and investments 
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Catel~ory 
2 3 

Fair 
Value 

66,335,234 

5,314,268 

489,061 
72,138,563 

73.425.813 

The pension trust funds own approximately 3.4 percent of the City's deposits in financial institations 
and 31.3 percent of the U .S. governm ent and U .S. governm ent agency securities. 

Com ponent U nits 

All deposits of the component units are held by area financial institutions. At the respective year 
ends, all deposits are insured or collateralized with securities held in the component unit's name by 
its agent (the trust department of a bank other than the pledging bank). The investments of the 
Bossier Public Trust Financing Authority at N ovem ber 30, 1998, consist prim arily of m ortgage- 
backed securities and investment agreem ents which are considered category 1 investments. The 
securities have a market value of $13,242,200 at November 30, 1998. 
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(3) Ad Valorem Property Taxes 
The City levies taxes on real and business personal property located within its boundaries. Property 
taxes are levied by the City on property values assessed by the Bossier Parish Tax Assessor and 
approved by the State of Louisiana Tax Commission. Total assessed value was $243,058,780 and 
$225,760,430 in 1998 and 1997, respectively. Property taxes are recorded as receivables and 
revenues in the year assessed. The General Fund property tax receivable at December 31, 1998 and 
1997, is shown net of an allowance for uncollectible taxes as of each year end of $65,000. The 
distribution of the City's levy (tax rate per $1,000 assessed value) was as follows for 1998 and 1997: 

General Fund - unrestricted $ 
General Fund - restricted for Fire and Police 

D epartm ents 

Levy 

6.90 

19.48 
26.38 

1997 

6.90 

19.48 
26.38 

A revaluation of all property is required to be completed no less than every 4 years. A revaluation 
was com pleted for the tax roll as of January 1, 1996. 

(4) Fixed Assets 

A sum mary  of changes in general fixed assets is as follows 

l.aad and land 
im provem ents 

Buildings and 
structures 

Equipm ent and 
vehicles 

Balance 
January 1, 

1998 Additions Retirem ents 

$ 7,248,020 878,217 

26,220,222 2,559,126 

13,080.616 3,074,200 

$ 46,548,858 6,511,543 

29 

Balance 
D ecem ber 31, 

1998 

8,126,237 

28,779,348 

459.827 15.694.989 

459.827 
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A summary of proprietary fund types property, plant, and equipment at December 31, 1998, follows 

Deparlm ent of W ater and Se-,verage: 
Land 
W ater reservoir and treatm ent plant 
Transm ission and distribution system 
Equipm ent 
Construction in progress 

Less accum ulated depreciation 
Total Department of W ater and Sewerage 

Bossier M edical Center: 
Land and land improvements 
Buildings 
Fixed equipm ent 

Major movable equipment 
M inor equipment 
Construction in progress 

Less accumulated depreciation 
Total Bossier M edical Center 

Em ergency M edical Serv ices - equipm ent 
Less accumulated depreciation 

Total Em ergency M edical Services 

Total all proprietary  fund types 

583,508 
35,362,598 
28,239,380 
4,211,960 
18.634.335 
87,031,781 
24.602.843 
62.428.938 

1,884,628 
14,439,973 
13,072,612 
22,999,922 
1,049,856 
187.803 

53,634,794 
35.634.794 
18.000.000 

1,064,525 
778.078 
286.447 

80.715.385 

Included in construction in progress for the Department of W ater and Sewerage is $12,326,697 for 
the water plant expansion and $4,891,879 for the sewer plant expansion. 

As a result oflhe bids received for the sale of Bossier M edical Center, an impairment in the value of 
the hospital of $2,274,752 was recorded in asset impairment expense and accumulated depreciation 
during 1998. 
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(5) Long-Term Debt 

City of Bossier City (Primary Government) 

A sum mary of changes in general long-term obligations follows 

Balance, January 1, 1998 

Debt issues/additions 
D ebt retirem ents 

Accrued 
Vacation 

550,839 

19,940 

Balance, December 31, 1998 $ 570,779 

R evenue 
Bonds 

Payable - 
G eneral 
City 

Operations 

33,025,000 

34,750,000 

(1,925,000) 

65.850.000 

Total 

33,575,839 

34,769,940 

(1,925,000) 

66.420.779 

The following is a summary of bond transactions (all revenue bonds) for the year ended 
Decem ber 31, 1998: 

Bonds payable at January  1, 1998 
N ew issue 
Debt retired - serial bonds 
Amortization of gain on refunding 

Bonds payable at Decem ber 31, 1998 

]n addition to $3,180,000 of bonds retired, the City paid $4,137,560 in interest 

$ 52,150,106 
39,435,730 

(3,180,000) 
117.723 

$ 88.523.559 

(Continued) 



CITY O F BO SSIER CITY, LOUISIANA 

N otes to Com bined Financial Statem ents 

Decem ber 31, 1998 

Bonds payable at December 31, 1998, are comprised of the following issues 

Revenue bonds - applicable to general city operations: 

$6,500,000 1979 Public Improvement Sales Tax 
Serial Bonds due in annual installments of 
$370,000 to $500,000 through December 1, 2003; 
interest at 6.1% to 6.25%  

$10,000,000 1989 Public Improvement Sales Tax 
Serial Bonds due in annual installments of 
$240,000 to $285,000 through 2014; maturing 
November 1 of each year; interest at 10.0% to 
12.0% ; callable on or after November 1, 1999 

$8,190,000 1991 Revenue Refunding Bonds due in 
annual installments of $155,000 to $540,000 
through 2010; maturing December 1 of each year; 
interest at 6.15%  to 6.85% ; callable on or after 
Decem ber 1, 2001 

$11,675,000 1992 Revenue Refunding Bonds due in 
annual installments of $475,000 to $1,080,000 
through 2012; m aturing November 1 of each year; 
interest at 5.30% to 6.35% ; callable on or after 
N ovember 1. 1997 

$6,325,000 1993 Public Improvement Sales Tax 
Refunding Bonds, due in annual installments of 
$325,000 to $640,000 through 2010; maturing 
Decem ber I of each year; interest at 3.95%  to 
5.3% ; callable on or after July 1, 1996 

$8,765,000 1997 Revenue Refunding Bonds due ill 
annual installments of $75,000 to $830,000; 
maturing Novem ber 1 of each year; interest at 
3.8%  to 5.2%  

$34,750,000 1998 Public 
Serial Bonds due in 

Im provem ent Sales Tax 
annual installments of 

$705,000 to $2,515,000 through 2022; maturing 
Decem ber 1 of each year; interest at 4.60%  to 
6.75% ; callable on or after Decem ber l, 2007 

2,215,000 

285,000 

3,655,000 

10,600,000 

5,655,000 

8,690,000 

34,750,000 
65.850.000 
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Revenue bonds - applicable to water and sewer operations 

$9,995,000 1990 Utilities Revenue Serial Bonds due 
in annual installments of $390,000 to $445,000 
through 2000; maturing October 1 of each year; 
interest at 6.7% to 6.9%  

$6,695,000 1992 Utilities Revenue Serial Bonds due 
in annual installments of $255,000 to $560,000 
through 2012; m aturing October 1 of each year; 
interest at 5.0%  to 6.1%  

$7,595,000 1996 Utilities Revenue Refunding Bonds 
due in annual installments of $95,000 to $880,000; 
m aturing October I of each year; interest at 3.9% 
to 5.1%, (net of $894,901 of unamortized deferred 
gain on refunding of 1990 Utilities Revenue 
Bonds) 

$6,500,000 Utility Revenue Bonds, Series 1997 due in 
annual installments of $220,000 to $460,000 
through 2019; m aturing October 1 of each year; 
interest at 3.95%  

Revenue bonds - applicable to M edical Center operations 

$10,165,000 1987 Hospital Refunding Serial Bonds 
due in annual installments of $545,000 to $840,000 
through 2005, m aturing January 1 of each year; 
interest at 7.15%  to 7.85% ; callable on or after 
January  1, 1998 

Tota l revenue bonds 

33 

860,000 

5,520,000 

6,480,000 

5,103.460 
17.963.559 

4.710.000 
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The annual requirements, excluding unamortized deferred gain on bond refunding of $894,901, to 
amortize all debt outstanding as of December 31, 1998, are as follows: 

Year Ending 
Decem ber 31 

1999 
2000 
2001 
2002 
2003-2007 
2008-2012 
2013-2017 
2018-2022 

Principal 

$ 8,235,000 
3,955,000 
4,175,000 
4,390,000 
21,835,000 
23,735,000 
11,758,460 
11,335r000 

89.418.460 

Interest Total 

6,128,659 
4,354,506 
4,129,769 
3,909,684 
15,898,001 
9,636,205 
4,658,872 
1.760,750 

14,363,659 
8,309,506 
8,304,769 
8,299,684 
37,733,001 
33,371,205 
16,417,332 
13.095.750 

50.476.446 139.894.906 

There are a number of limitations and restrictions contained in the various bond indentures. The 
City is in compliance with all significant limitations and restrictions, except for the revenue bonds 
applicable to the Bossier M edical Center operations. The Bossier M edical Center is required to 
com ply w ith convenants contained in the 1987 Revenue Bond Ordinance, including, am ong other 
requirements, the maintenance of certain funds on deposit with the Trustee, annual certification to 
the Trustee of adequate insurance coverage, lim itations on the issuance of additional indebtedness by 
the Bossier M edical Center, and the maintenance of a debt service coverage ratio of 1.20. The 
Bossier M edical Center was in compliance w ith revenue bond covenants for the year ended 
December 31, 1997. However, the Bossier M edical Center's debt service coverage ratio was less 
than 1.20 for the year ended December 31, 1998. Based on the terms of the 1987 Revenue Bond 
Ordinance, the revenue bonds are in default as a result of this covenant violation, and are classified 
as current liabilities in the Bossier M edical Center's balance sheet as of Decem ber 31, 1998. 

The t986 and 1987 Series bonds are considered to be defeased and the liability for those bonds has 
been removed from the General Long-Term Debt Account Group. At December 31, 1998, 
$5,265,000 and $9,515,000 of the 1986 and 1987 bonds, respectively, remain outstanding. 

The 1973, 1974, 1975, and 1978 series general obligation bonds are considered to be defeased and 
the liability has been rem oved from the General Long-Term D ebt Account Group. At Decem ber 31, 
1998, $82,050 of these bonds are outstanding. 

The 1990 Utilities Revenue Bonds are considered to be defeased and the liability for those bonds has 
been removed from the W ater and Sewer Fund. At December 31, 1998, $6,605,000 of these bonds 
are outstanding. 

The advance refunding of the 1990 Utilities Revenue Bonds resulted in a difference between the 
reacquisition price and tile net carrying amount of the old debt of $1,251,537. This difference, 
reported in the accompanying financial statements as a deduction from bonds payable, is being 
charged to operations through the year 2010 using the effective interest m ethod. At Decem ber 31, 
1998, the unamortized balance was $894,901. 
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The 1989 Public Im provem ent Bonds are considered to be defeased and the liability for those bonds 
has been removed from the general long-term debt account group~ At December 31, 1998, the 
outstanding balance on the 1989 refunded bonds was $8,135,000. 

In 1997, the City authorized the issuance of $6,500,000 Utility Revenue Bonds, Series 1997 for the 
purpose of acquiring and constructing extensions and improvements to the utilities system . In 
Decem ber 1997, the City received the first installment of the purchase price of the bonds in the 
am ount of $417,730. During 1998, the City received additional purchase price installments of 
$4,685,730. Principal payments for Series 1997 begin in the year 2000. 

In 1998, the City issued $34,750,000 in Public Improvement Sales Tax Serial Bonds, Series 1998 for 
the purpose of purchasing, constructing, acquiring, extending or im proving any public works or 
capital improvements. The City intends to use the proceeds to finance construction of an arena and 
the extension of the Arthur Ray Teague Parkway. 

Changes in Bossier M edical Center retained earnings reserved for debt service and unreserved 
during the year ended December 31, 1998 and 1997, were as follows: 

Bossier M edical Center Fund: 
Reserved: 
Balauce at beginning of year $ 890,405 
Transfer (to) from unreserved retained earnings 2,258 
Balance at end of year 892,663 

U nreserved 
Balance at beginning of year, as previously 
reported 

Less prior period adjustments 
Balance at beginning of year, as restated 
Transfer from (to) reserves 
Net income (loss) 
Balance at end of year 

Total retained earnings 

35 

30,364,652 

30,364,652 
(2,258) 

~ (5,865,120~ 
24,497,274 

1997 

1,035,206 

044,8o1~ 
890.405 

30,939,886 

(974,954) 
29,964,932 

144,801 
254.919 

30,364,652 

$ 25,389,937 31,255,057 
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Changes in the Department of W ater and Sewerage retained earnings reserved for debt service and 
unreserv ed during the year ended December 31, 1998 and 1997, were as follows: 

1998 1997 

Department of W ater and Sewerage Fund 
Reserved: 
Balance at beginning of year 
Transfer from (to) unreserved retained 
earnings 

Balance at end of year 

Unreserv ed: 
Balance at beginning of year 
N et income 
A m ounts charged to contribulion accounts 
for depreciation 

Transferred from (to) reserves 
Balance at end of year 

Total retained earnings 

36 

$ 839,049 

(34,630) 
804.419 

13,520,203 
2,022,153 

635,696 
34.630 

16,212,682 

$ 17,017.101 

975,975 

(136,926~_ 
839.049 

10,638,447 
2,108,541 

636,289 

136~26 
13,520,203 

(Continued) 



CITY O F BO SSIER CITY, LO UISIANA 

N otes to Com bined Financial Statem ents 

December 31, 1998 

Details of restricted assets at December 31, 1998 and 1997, are as follows 

Departm ent of W ater and Sewerage: 
W ater Division: 
Utility Revenue Bond Funds - 1990, 1992 and 
1996 Utility Revenue Serial Bonds Debt 
Service Fund: 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Accrued interest receivable 

W ater Capital Additions and Contingencies 
Fund: 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Accrued interest receivable 

1,772,118 
25,909 

1.798.027 

4,472,242 
60.805 

1,772,394 
20.598 
792,992 

8,301,325 
94.152 

4,533,047 8~395,477 
Total restricted assets applicable 
to the W ater Division 6,331,074 

Sewerage Division - Sewerage Capital 
Additions and Contingencies Fund: 
Cash and cash equivalents 
A ccrued interest receivable 

Total restricted assets applicable 
t~ the Sewerage D~vis~or~ 

Total Department of W ater and 
Sewerage restricted assets 

Bossier M edical Center: 
Revenue Bond Retirement Fund - cash and 
cash equivalents 

Designated for plant and equipment additions 
and replacem ents: 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Certificate of deposit 
Government agency securities 

2,676,113 
34.390 

2,710,503 

9,041,577 

$ 1,617,283 

6,717,822 
250,000 

6.967.822 

10.188.469 

1,319,676 
18,107 

1.337,783 

1,603.437 

3,911,006 
100,000 

1,097,630 
5.108.636 

Total restricted assets applicable 
to Bossier M edical Center $ 8,585,105 6,712,073 
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Stale law allows a m axim um of 10%  of assessed valuation of bonded debt for any one purpose or 
35% of the total assessed value for all purposes. The City assessed property value at December 3l, 
1998, is $243,058,780. The maximum debt allowable for any one purpose and total debt allowable 
by state law as of December 31, 1998, is $24,305,878 and $85,070,573, respectively. The City 
currently has no general bonded debt outstanding, Therefore, at Decem ber 31, 1998, the City has a 
debt m argin of $85,070,573 available for issuance pursuant to the 35% limitation. 

Com ponent U nits 

The bonds payable of the Bossier Public Trust Financing Authority at N ovember 30, 1998, consist of 
$13,145,000 Single Family M ortgage Revenue Bonds, 1995 Series dated August 1, 1995, with 
interest at rates ranging from 4.2% to 6.5%  and maturing through August 1, 2028. The 1992 Series 
bonds were refunded by the issuance of $10,080,000 of the 1995B Series bonds having an average 
interest rate of approximately 5.97% . At November 30, 1998, the Authority has cash and cash 
equivalents, investments, and accrued interest receivable of $29,112; $13,326,927; $79,149; 
respectively, restricted for repaym ent of the bonds. 

Scheduled bond principal maturities are as follows 

1999 
2006 
2001 
2002 
2003 
Thereafter 

$ 135,000 
140,000 
150,000 
155,000 
160,000 

12,405,000 

$ 13.145,000 

Under provisions of the indenture, the Bossier Public Trust Financing Authority has the option to 
redeem rem aining outstanding bonds in whole at any time on or after August 1, 2005, from available 
funds at an initial redemption price of 102%  of par and subsequently at prices declining to par. The 
bonds are collateralized by the income derived from the m ortgage loans and the funds and accounts 
held under or pledged to the program pursuant to the indenture. 

(6) Sales Tax 
The Consolidated Sales Tax Agency Fund accounts for the collection of a two and one-half cent City 
sales and use tax and the distribution of this tax to other funds of the City. This fund also accounts 
for the collection and distribution of sales taxes levied by the Bossier Parish School Board and 
various municipalities within the parish. For financial reporting purposes, sales taxes are recorded 
as revenue in the individual funds which account for operations or projects for which the taxes were 
levied and as approved for expenditure by ordinance of the Council. 
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The original one cent sales tax is used initially to pay operating expenses incurred in the 
adm inistration and collection of sales taxes. Scheduled paym ents are m ade on a m onthly basis into 
the Sales Tax Bond and Interest Sinking Funds for debt service requirements. After these payments, 
the amount, if any, up to one-half of the total monthly sales tax revenues (net of collection expense) 
are payable to the General Fund for Fire and Police Department operations and maintenance. The 
remaining amount, if any, is payable to the Sales Tax Capital Improvement Fund. 

A half cent sales tax was approved by the voters in 1982. This revenue, net of expenses incurred in 
collecting the tax, is to be paid to the Firemen's and Policemen's Pension and Relief Funds to 
liquidate the unfunded liabilities of the plans over 30 years. The rem aining amount, if any, is 
payable to the General Fund for salaries of police, fire, and other City employees. 

In 1987, a half cent sales tax was approved by the voters. The additional revenue, net of expenses 
incurred in collecting the tax, is to be used for retirement of principal and payment of interest on 
sales tax bonds issued for the design and construction of a parkway adjacent to the Red River. The 
remaining amount, if any, is payable to the Parkway Capital Projects Fund. 

In 1991, an additional half cent sales tax was approved by the voters for the purposes of constructing 
and operating two new fire stations and a training facility, operating and maintaining the City jail 
and municipal buildings, maintaining and upgrading streets and drainage, and for salaries for 
personnel other than firemen and policemen. 

The cost associated with collecting and distributing the sales tax is funded by the City and the 
Bossier Parish School Board. The two entities fund the sales tax departmental expenditures on a pro 
rata basis. The various municipalities are charged a I% commission on sales tax collected and 
distributed. The am ounts recorded as sales tax revenue in the various funds are net of operating 
expenses of the sales tax department and includes other m iscellaneous revenue related to the 
operation of the department and the collection of the tax. 

(7) City Charter Provisions - Department of W ater and Sewerage 
The City Charter, w hich becam e effective July l, 1977, authorized annual transfers from tile 
Departm ent of W ater and Sewerage operating accounts of an am ount equal to debt service on 
general obligation bonds issued for water and sewerage purposes to the Bond and Interest Sinking 
Funds. 

However, the transfer to the Bond and Interest Sinking Funds for debt service on general obligation 
bonds issued for water and sewerage purp oses was not m ade because, in the opinion of the City 
attorney, the Charter provisions are in conflict w ith previous contractual obligations arising from 
issuance of general obligation and water revenue refunding bonds, and the transfer m ay not be 
required. These particular bonds were advance refunded in 1995 and no paym ents were m ade in 
1998. 
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(8) Contributed Capital 
Changes in contributed capital during the year ended December 31, 1998, were as follows 

Departm ent 
of 

W ater and 
Sewerage 

Bossier 
M edical 
Center 

Balances at 
January 1, 1998 $ 42,889,362 2,922,230 

Contributions 
Amounts charged to 
contribution accounl 
for depreciation 

2,942,822 

(635,696) 

Balances at 
December31, 1998 $ 45,196,488 

Em ergency 
M edical 
Set'vices T~tal 

3,975 45,815,567 

2,942,822 

(635,696) 

3.975 48.122.693 

(9) Defined Benefit Pension Plans 
The City administers three defined benefit pension plans: the Firemen's Pension and Relief Fund 
("Firemen's Fund"), the Policemen's Pension and Relief Fund ("Policemen's Fund"), and tile 
Bossier M edical Center Employees' Pension Fund ("BM C Fund"). 

A. Sum m ary of Significant Accounting Policies 

Basis of Accounting - The three City adm inistered pension plans' financial statements are 
prepared using the accrual basis of accounting. Employer and plan member contributions are 
recognized in the period in which employees provide services to the entity. Benefits and 
refunds are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the terms of the plan. 

M ethod Used to Value Investm ents - Investments arc reported at fair value, Short-term 
investments are reported at cost, which approximates fair value. Securities traded on a national 
or ir~.ert~atiortaL e~cchange are valued at the last reported sales price at current exchange rates. 
Investm ents that do not have an established m arket are reported at estim ated fair value. 

B. Concentration of Investm ents 

The Firemen's Fund, Policemen's Fund and BM C Fund had no investments in any one 
organization representing 5%  or more of the fund balance reserved for employees' pension 
benefits except for obligations of the federal governm ent. There are no investm ents in loans to 
or leases w ith parties related to the pension plans. 
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C . Plan D escriptions and Contribution Inform ation 

M em bership of each plan consisted of the follow ing at Decem ber 31, 1998 

Retirees and beneficiaries 
receiving benefits 

DROP m em bers 
Current em ployees 
Vested 
Nonvested 

Tota 

Firem en's 
Fund 

76 
20 

I 
4 

Polieem en's 
Fund 

59 

59 

BM C 
Fund 

67 

171 
235 

473 

Adm inistrative costs of the Firem en's Fund, Policem en's Fund and BM C Fund are financed 
through the plan revenues. These plans do not have any legally required reserves. 

Firemen's Pension and Relief Fund (Firemen's Fund) 

Plan Description - The Firem en's Fund is a single-em ployer defined benefit pension plan that 
covers substantially all members of the City's Fire Department em ployed by the City before 
January l, 1980. All firemen employed by the City on or after January t, 1980, must join the 
Firefighter's Retirement System of Louisiana Plan. 

Pension Benefits - Em ployees w ith 20 years of service are eligible to receive m onthly retirem ent 
benefits. These benefits are equal to two-thirds (2/3) of average final compensation, as defined. Tile 
beneficiary receives an additional amount equal to one (1) percent of such salary for each year of 
service after the m em ber has reached the age of 50 years and has serv ed 20 years, provided that the 
maximum benefit shall not exceed seventy-five (75) percent of the salary . Benefits can only be paid 
out m onthly and em ployee and em ployer contributions are forfeited upon termination of an 
em ployee w ithout the required length of service. 

Death and Disability Benefits - If an active employee or an employee eligible for or receiving 
benefits shall die from any cause, a monthly benefit shall be paid to the member's surviving spouse 
and children. The spouse, while remaining unmarried, sball receive fifty (50) percent of tile eligible 
benefits to w hich the deceased m em ber would be entitled. Each surv iving m inor child under the age 
of eighteen (18)years shall receive twenty-four (24) percent of said benefits until the age of eighteen 
(18) or until married, whichever is sooner. These amounts paid to the family of the deceased will 
not exceed two-thirds (2/3) of the member's salary. 
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If an active employee becomes disabled by reason of serving the department, he shall receive 
monthly a sum which, with the benefits from the W orkmen's Compensation Act, shall be equal to 
seventy-five (75) percent of the monthly salary of the active member holding the position 
corresponding to that held by the beneficiary at the lime he became disabled. The benefits shall 
continue as long as the disability shall eontinue or until he becom es eligible for retirement on a 
service basis, whichever is sooner. If an active mem ber with at least ten years of service becomes 
disabled by reason of causes not arising or developing directly from em ploym ent, w ith certain 
exceptions, he shall receive monthly a sum equal to one-thi.rd (1/3) of the monthly salary of the 
active m em ber holding the position corresponding to that held by the beneficiary  at the time he 
became disabled, plus an additional two (2) percent of such salary for each year of active service 
rendered over five years. The maximum benefit shall not exceed two-thirds (2/3) of the monthly 
salary . 

Deferred Retirem ent Option Plan - The Firemen's Fund provides for a Deferred Retirement 
Option Plan (DROP). Under the DROP, any member who has at least twenty years of creditable 
service and who is eligible for a service retirement allowance m ay elect to defer receipt of these 
benefits for a period of three years. The monthly retirement benefits that would have been payable 
had the m em ber elected to cease employment and receive a service retirement allowance w ill be paid 
into the DROP account. Upon term ination of employment at the end of the specified period of 
participation, "the m onthly benefits that were being paid into the DROP account during the period of 
participation begin being paid to the retiree. The participant m ay elect to receive paym ent in the 
form of one lump sum or an annuity based upon the account balance. 

Funding Sources - The Plan is funded from the following sources, as established and m ay be 
amended by City ordinance: 

Proceeds from the City's portion of the State of Louisiana 2%  Fire Insurance Tax Account. 

The sale of condemned property owned and used by the Fire Department. 

Five percent of the salaries of all employees of the Fire Department who are eligible for 
participation in the Firem en's Plan. 

A matching five percent of employees' salaries paid by the General Fund. 

Reimbursement by the General Fund for the operating deficit, if any. 

Income from investments owned by the Firemen's Plan. 

Am ounts from the sales tax levy suffi cient to liquidate the unfunded liability over a period 
not to exceed 30 years, 
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Annual Pension Cost and Net Pension O bligation - A pension liability at transition was 
determ ined in accordance with Government Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 27, 
Accounting for Pensions by State and Local Governmental Employers and equaled zero before and 
after transition. The City's annual pension cost and net pension obligation to the Firemen's fund for 
tile current year were as follows: 

Annual required contribution 
Interest on net pension obligation 
Adjustment to annual required contribution 
Annual pension cost 
Contributions m ade 
Increase in net pension asset 
Net pension obligation beginning of year 

N et pension obligation end of year 

$ 3,409,742 
7,883 

3,417,625 
3,267,396 
150,229 
92.540 

57,689 

Tile annual required contribution for the current year was determ ined as part of the December 31, 
1998 actuarial valuation using the entry age norm al actuarial cost m ethod. Significant actuarial 
assumptions included: (a) 6.5% investment rate of return, compounded annually, including inflation 
of 3.25%, (b) projected salary increases of 4.5%, including inflation of 3.25%, (c) cost of living 
adjustments of 3.25%, and (d) amortization method of level percentage over 14 year closed period. 
The actuarial value of assets is based upon fair value. 

Fiscal Year Ending 

12/31/96 
12/31/97 
12/31/98 

Three-Year Trend Inform ation 

A nnual 
Pension 
Cost 

$ 1,949,123 
2,279,747 
3,417,625 

Percentage 
of Annual 

Pension C ost 
Contributed 

104%  
100%  
96%  

N et 
Pension 
A sset 

(Obligation) 

92,540 
(57,689) 

The Firemen's Fund issues a publicly available financial report that includes required supplementary 
information. That report may be obtained by writing to M r. Charles E. Glover, Director of Finance, 
City of Bossier City, P. O. Box 5337, Bossier City, Louisiana 71171-5337. 

Policemen's Pension and Relief Fund (Policemen's Fund) 

Plan Description - The Policemen's Fund is a single-em ployer defined benefit pension plan that 
covers a lim ited number of members of the City 's Police Department not covered under the 
M unicipal Police Em ployee Retirem ent System of Louisiana. A ll policem en em ployed on or after 
September 9, 1977, must join the M unicipal Police Employee Retirement System of Louisiana Plan. 
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Pension Benefits - Em ployees with 20 years of service or employees w ith 18 consecutive years of 
service and that have reached 65 years of age are eligible for m onthly retirement benefits, These 
benefits shall be two-thirds (2/3) of average final compensation, as defined. Benefits can only be 
paid monthly and employee contributions are forfeited upon term ination of an employee without the 
required length of serv ice. 

The Policemen's Plan provides for a joint and survivor benefit option. This option gives the 
recipient the choice of reducing the amount of retirem ent drawn and increases amounts paid to 
survivors upon death. This option is actuarially equivalent to the original service retirem ent benefit. 
Benefits paid regardless of option remains at two-thirds (2/3) of monthly salary. 

Deferred Relirem ent O ption Plan - The Policem en's Plan provides for a Deferred Retirem ent 
Option Plan (DROP). Under the DROP, any member who has at least twenty years of creditable 
service and who is eligible for a service retirement allowance may elect to defer receipt of these 
benefits for a period of three years. The monthly retirement benefits that would have been payable 
had the member elected to cease employment and receive a serv ice retirement allowance will be paid 
into the DRO P account. Upon term ination of em ploym ent at the end of the specified period of 
participation, the m onthly benefits that were being paid into the DROP account during the period of 
participation w ill begin being paid to the retiree. The participant m ay elect to receive paym ent in the 
form of no more than two payments per year in increments of at least $I,000 or an annuity based 
upon the account balance. 

Death and Disability Benefits - A ll participants are either retired or under the DROP program . 
Therefore, if a m em ber dies while receiving a pension and leaves a child or children under eighteen 
years of age, a widow , or a dependent m other; these survivors should be paid as follows: dependent 
mother, one hundred dollars per month; widow, survivor benefits based upon the election of the 
participant; each child under eighteen years of age or who is attending college, one hundred fifty 
dollars per month, regardless of the num ber of children. 

Funding Sources - The Policem en's Fund is funded from the following sources, as established by 
City ordinance: 

Twenty percent of all am ounts collected for City Court fines. 

Ten percent of all funds collected by the City for taxes, licenses, or perm its for the sale of 
alcoholic beverages. 

Six percent of the salaries of all employees of the Police Departm ent who are eligible for 
participation in the Policemen's Plan. 

Incom e from investments owned by the Policemen's Plan. 

Reimbursement by the General Fund for the operating deficit of the prior year, if any. 

Am ounts from the 1982 sales tax levy sufficient to liquidate the unfunded liability over a 
period not to exceed 30 years. 
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Annual Pension Cost and Net Pension Obligation - A pension liabi!ity at transition was 
determ ined in accordance with Government Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 27, 
Accounting for Pensions by State and Local Governmental Employers and equaled zero before and 
after transition. The City's annual pension cost and net pension asset to tile Polieem en's Fund for 
the current year were as follows: 

Annual required contribution 
Interest on net pension obligation 
Adjustment to annual required contribution 
A nnual pension cost 
Contributions made 
Increase in net pension asset 
Net pension asset beginning of year 

Net pension asset end of year 

1,731,244 
1,158 

1,732,402 
1.759.456 
27,054 
14.246 

41.300 

The annual required contribution for the current year was determined as part of the December 31, 
1998 actuarial valuation using the entry age normal actuarial cost method. Significant actuarial 
assumptions included: (a) 6.5% investment rate of return, compounded annually, including inflation 
of 3.25% (b) cost of living adjustments of 3.25%, and (c) amortization method of level percentage 
over 14 year closed period. The actuarial value of assets is based upon fair value. 

Three-Year Trend Inform ation 

Fiscal Year Ending: 

12/31/96 $ 
12/31/97 
12131/98 

A nnual 
Pension 
Cost 

1,061,054 
1,163,438 
1,732,402 

Percentage 
of A nnual 

Pension Cost 
Contributed 

100%  
101%  
102%  

N et 
Pension 
A sset 

14,246 
41,300 

The Policem en's Fund issues a publicly available financial report that includes required 
supplem entary inform ation. That report m ay be obtained by w riting to M r. Charles E. G lover, 
Director of Finance, City of Bossier City, P. O. Box 5337, Bossier City, Louisiana 71171-5337. 
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Bossier M edical Center Employees' Pension Fund ("BM C Fund") 

Plan Description - The BM C Fund is a single-employer defined benefit pension plan that covers all 
eligible employees of the Bossier M edical Center. The Bossier M edical Center m aintains a separate 
noncontributory defined benefit pension plan for its employees only. The plan covers substantially 
all em ployees who have m et the length of service requirements. There is no publicly available 
financial report issued on this plan. A ll required disclosures are included in these notes. Trend data 
is not required when the aggregate actuarial cost method is used. 

Benefits - The BM C Fund is a plan sponsored by Bossier M edical Center to provide retirement 
benefits as well as death and disability benefits. Benefits vest 100%  after five years. Employees 
who retire at age 65 are entitled to a benefit of 1.2 percent of each year's com pensation plus .5 
percent of compensation in excess of $10,000 for service after January 1, 1989. The formula is 1 
percent of compensation in excess of $10,000 for serv ice prior to 1989, but is based on a five-year 
average compensation as of 1989. Compensation is defined as total base salary  and wages actually 
paid excluding any additions such as bonuses, overtim e, and business expenses. Em ployees m ay 
receive a reduced benefit at or after age 55 if they have ten years of serv ice. 

Funding Sources - The contribution requirements are established and m ay be amended by the 
Bossier M edical Center's Board of D irectors. The Bossier M edical Center is required to contribute 
at an actuarially determ ined rate; the current rate is 6.5%  of covered payroll. 

Annual Pension Cost and Net Pension Obligation - For 1998, annual pension cost of $828,000 
was equal to 100%  of Bossier M edical Center's actual contributions. The BM C Fund's net pension 
obligation was zero at December 31, 1998. Annual pension cost for December 31, 1997 and ]996 
was $660,000 and $724,000, respectively, which was equal to 100% of the contributions. 

The required contribution for 1998 was determ ined as part of the January 1, 1998 actuarial .valuation 
using the aggregate actuarial cost method. This method does not identify or separately amortize 
unfunded liabilities. Significant actuarial assumptions included: (a) 7.0% investment rate of return, 
compounded annually, (b) projected salary increases of 3% per year compounded annually, 
attributable to inflation, (c) additional projected salary increases of 1% per year, attributable to 
seniority/merit, (d) no postretirement benefit increases, and (e) postrctirement benefit values based 
on 7.5%  interest and sex specific 1983 Group Annuity m ortality. 
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M ultiple-Em ployer Cost-Sharlng Benefit Plans - Public Em ployee R etirem ent System s 

M unicipal Employees' Retirement System of Louisiana ("ERS") 

Plan Description - The City contributes to the M unicipal Employees' Retirement System of 
Louisiana, a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan adm inistered by the Board 
of Trustees of the M unicipal Employees' Retirement System of Louisiana. ERS covers substantially 
all employees of the City not covered by the fire, police and Bossier M edical Center pension plans. 
Benefits are established and may be amended by State statutes. The ERS issues a publicly available 
financial report that includes financial statem ents and required supplem enlary information. That 
report m ay be obtained by writing to the Board of Trustees, M unicipal Em ployees' Retirement 
System of Louisiana, 7937 Office Park Boulevard, Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70809 or by calling 504- 
925-4810. 

M unicipal Police Employees' Retirement System of Louisiana ("M PERS") 

Plan Description - The City contributes to the M unicipal Police Employees Retirement System 
Pension Plan, a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan administered by the 
M unicipal Police Employees' Retirement System. M PERS covers any full-time police officer, 
empowered to make arrests, employed by a municipality of the State and engaged in law 
enforcement, earning at least $375 per month excluding state supplemental pay, or an elected Chief 
of Police whose salary is at least $100 per month, and any employee of this system may participate 
in the M PERS. Benefits are established and m ay be amended by State statutes. The M PERS issues 
a publicly available financial report that includes financial statem ents and required supplem entary  
information. That report may be obtained by writing to the Board of Trustees of the M unicipal 
Police Employees' Retirement System, 8401 United Plaza Blvd. Room 305, Baton Rouge, Louisiana 
70806 or by calling 1-800-443-4248. 

Funding Policy - Plan m em bers are required to contribute 7.5%  of their annual compensation and 
the City is required to contribute 9%  of annual com pensation, excluding overtim e but including State 
supplemental pay. The c~nt ribution requirements of plan members and the City are established and 
m ay be amended by State statute. The City's contributions to M PERS for the years ending 
December 31, 1998, 1997, and 1996 were $443,229, $407,278 and $373,348, respectively, equal to 
the required contributions for each year. 
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Statewidc Fircfigbters' Retirement System (SFRS) 

Plan Description - The City contributes to the Statewide Firefighters' Retirement System Pension 
Plan, a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan administered by the 
Firefighters' Retirem ent System . SFRS covers firefighters employed by any m unicipality, parish, or 
fire protection district of the State of Louisiana under the provisions of Louisiana Revised Statutes 
11:2251 through 2269 effective January 1, 1980. Benefits are established and may be amended by 
State statutes. The SFRS issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial 
statements and required supplementary  information. That report m ay be obtained by writing to the 
Board of Trustees, Firefighters' Retirement System, 2051 Silverside Drive, Suite 210, Baton Rouge, 
Louisiana 70808-4136 or by calling 504-925-4060. 

Funding Policy - Plan mem bers are required to contribute 8% of their annual com pensation and the 
City is required to contribute 9% of annual compensation, excluding overtime but including State 
supplem ental pay. The contribution requirem ents of plan m em bers and the City are established and 
may be amended by the SFRS Board of Trustees. The City's contributions to SFRS for the years 
ending December 31, 1998, 1997, and ]996 were $372,379, $326,766 and $308,702, respectively, 
equal to the required contributions for each year. 

(10) Lease Commitments 

The City has commitments under several operating lease agreements for equipment, land, and a 
water supply reservoir. W ith the exception of the water supply reservoir, these lease agreem ents are 
cancelable by the City at any time. City management does feel, however, that such leases w ill 
generally be renewed or replaced each year. The City's lease agreement for the water supply 
reservoir calls for fixed annual payments of $1,000 for the next 24 years. 

Bossier M edical Center has future m inimum lease payments under operating leases that have initial 
or remaining lease terms in excess of one year as of December 31, 1998, as follows: 

1999 
2000 
2001 
2002 
2003 

Year Ending 
D ecem ber 31 

Total m inim um lease paym ents 

M inim um 
Lease 

Paym ents 

399,510 
272,867 
89,310 
56,713 

$ 818,400 

Totalrentalexpensefor 1998 and 1997forall City and Bossier M edical Center operating leases was 
$1,341,527 and $1,921,611,respectively. 
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(11) Other Required Individual Fund Disclosures 

(A) lnterf und Receivables and Payables 
Individual fund interfund receivable and payable balances at Decem ber 31, 1998, w ere as 
follows: 

Fund 

General Fund 
Special Revenue Funds - State and Federal 
grants 

Capital Projects Funds: 
Parkway Capital Projects 
Sales Tax Capital Improvements 

Debt Service Funds: 
Parkway Sales Tax Bond Sinking 
and Reserve 

Sales Tax Bond Sinking and Reserve 

lnterfund 
Receivables 

66.662 

223,445 

183,061 

473,168 

lnterlund 

. 
Payables 

66,662 

183,061 

223,445 

473,168 

(B) Segments of Enterprise Activities 

There are three services provided by the City which are financed by user charges - water and 
sewer services, hospital serv ices and emergency medical services. The key financial data for 
the year ended D ecem ber 31, 1998, for the three services are as follows: 

Operating revenues 
O perating expenses: 
Depreciation 
Otber 

W ater 
and Sewer 
Services 

H ospital 
Services  

Em ergency 
M edical 
Services Total 

$ 9,486,273
.~_ 46,411,214 2,121,861 58,019,348 

1,579,970 
5,975,922 
7,555,892 

2,885,248 
46,505,782 
4%391.030 

Operating income (loss) $ 1,930,38
= = = = = = = ,~ 1 (2,979,816) 

O perating transfers in 
(out) $ 

49 

550.000 

120,206 
1,901,233 
2,021,439 

100.422 

4,585,424 
54,382,937 
58,968,361 

550.000 
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W ater 
and Sewer 
Services 

H ospital 
Services 

Net income (loss) $ 2,022,153 (5,865,120) 

Contributions 
received 

Assets $ 82,975,470 

Bonds payable $ 17,963,559 

36.937.657 

4.710.000 

Fund equity $ 62,213,589 28,312,16
= ,~ =~ =7 

N et w orking 
capital 

Acquisition of 
property, plant, 
and equipment $ 15,010,695 

(C) Operating Transfers 
A reconciliation of operating transfers follows 

General Fund 
Special revenue funds: 
Fire Im provements and 
Operations Fund 

Jail and M unicipal 
Buildings Fund 

Streets and D rainage Fund 
Riverboat Gam ing Fund 

D ebt service funds: 
Parkway Sales Tax Bond 
Sinking and Reserve 

Sales Tax Bond Sinking 
and Reserve 

6.597.969 

2.857.817 

Yearended 
Decem ber 31,1998 
In O ut 

$ 3,534,739 

2,539,008 

Em ergency 
M edical 
Services Total 

126.071 

870.664 

813,507 
431,233 
375,000 

358,445 

1,828,330 

117.922 

2,942,822 

120.936.052 

22.673.559 

15,504,193 

17.986.434 

Year ended 
D ecem ber 31, 1997 
In O ul 

3,200,351 

1,2Gg,~G~ 

590,004 
105,000 

1,702,401 

50,000 
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Capital projects funds: 
Sales Tax Capital 
lmprovem enl Fund 

Parkway Capital Projects 
Fund 

Parkway Sales Tax Bond 
Fund 

Special Project Fund 
Riverboat Gam ing Fund 

Enterprise funds - Bossier 
M edical Center Fund 

Year ended 
Decem ber 31, 1998 
In O ut 

1,828,330 

3581445 

Year ended 
D ecem ber 31, 1997 
In O ut 

50,000 

2,604,007 3,021,054 

550.000 

65,000 

2,000,000 

550.000 

$ 8,260,522 8,260,522 6,271,405 6,271,405 

In 1987, the City Council adopted an ordinance by which annual transfers w ill be m ade from 
Bossier M edical Center to various funds of the City. In 1994, the City Council adopted au 
ordinance budgeting the Bossier M edical Center transfers to the General Fund. In accordance 
with the ordinance, $550,000 was transferred in 1998. Future transfers are subject to various 
financial ratios and earnings of the Bossier M edical Center. 

(19) Residual Equity Transfers 

During 1998, $2,565,647 was transferred from the Riverboat Gaming Fund and recorded as a 
contribution in the W ater and Sewer Fund for the purpose of funding various ulility 
construction projects. 

51 (Continued) 



CITY OF BOSSIER CITY, LO UISIANA 

Notes to Com bined Financial Statements 

Decem ber 31, 1998 

(12) Budget Com parisons and Fund Deficits 

(A) Budget Comparisons 

For those funds for which a budget to actual comparison was m ade, actual expenditures on a 
budgetary basis exceeded budgeted expenditures on a line item basis as follows: 

General Fund 

Fund Budget 

General government: 
Adm inistration 
M unicipal building 
Finance 
Personnel 
Public works 
City Council 
Inform ation services 
Herbicide 

Public Safety - fire 
Culture and recreation 
M arshal's office 

Special Revenue Funds: 
Civic Center - capital outlay 
Fire Im provem ents and 
O perations - capital outlay 

251,882 
956,168 
562,709 
127,270 
178,995 
165,589 
340,181 
157,490 

5,616,677 
1,098,128 
415,187 

A ctual on a 
Budgetary 

Basis 

301,794 
1,069,840 
580,015 
129,830 
184,385 
175,299 
405,821 
162,599 

6,050,359 
1,349,568 
415,301 

Unfavorable 
Variance 

(49,912) 
(113,672) 
(17,306) 
(2,560) 
(5,390) 
(9,710) 
(65,640) 
(5,109) 

(433,682) 
(251,440) 

(114) 

1,850,000 2,191,172 (341,172) 

534,407 (534,407) 

The unfavorable variance in adm inistration is due to the inclusion of salary costs for an 
employee who was previously budgeted in another department. The unfavorable variance in 
m unicipal building is due prim arily to unbudgeted repairs and m aintenance activities, The 
unfavorable variance in information services is related to consultant costs. The unfavorable 
variance in public safety-fire is due primarily to increased worker's compensation costs. The 
unfavorable variance in culture and recreation is related to unbudgeted expenditures. Capital 
outlay expenditures in the Civic Center Fund reflect an unfavorable variance due to costs 
absorbed by this fund which were initially expected to be funded from the Sales Tax Capital 
Im provem ents Fund. The unfavorable variance in the Fire and Im provem ents Fund is related 
to the purchase of a new ladder truck for which the City anticipated reimbursement from the 
riverboats. 

A ll budgets are adopted on a basis substantially consistent w ith generally accepted accounting 
principles (GAAP) except that administrative expenditures allocated to the State and Federal 
Grant Special Revenue Fund are budgeted in the General Fund. 

Adjustments necessary to convert the expenditures at the end of the year on the budgetary 
basis to the GA AP basis are as follow s: 
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Budgetary basis 

Adm inistrative costs of State 
and Federal Grant Special 
Revenue Fund 

Special Revenue Funds without 
operating budgets 

G AAP basis 

General 
Fund 

Special 
Revenue 
Funds 

25,472,010 3,654,613 

96,634 

1,744,408 

$ 25,375,376 5,399,021 

(13) Federal and State Financial Assistance 

Federal and State governmental units represent an important source of supplementary funding to 
finance housing, employment, and construction programs, and other activities beneficial to the 
com munity. These funds, primarily in the form of grants, are recorded in the General and Special 
Revenue Funds. A grant receivable is recorded when the City has a right to reimbursement under 
the related grant. The grants norm ally specify the purpose for which the funds m ay be used and are 
audited annually under the single audit as m andated by the Single Audit Act of 1996 and U .S. Office 
of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of State andLocal Governments. 

Supplem entary salary  paym ents are m ade by the state to certain groups of em ployees. The City is 
not legally responsible for these salaries. Therefore, the basis for recognizing the revenue and 
expenditure paym ents is the actual contribution from the state. For 1998 and 1997 respectively, the 
state paid supplemental salaries to the following groups of employees: Fire Department employees, 
$491,125 and $538,340; Police Department employees, $545,100 and $461,895; and City marshal 
employees (a component unit), $19,790 and $13,923. 

(14) Commitments and Contingencies 

Construction Projects 

There are certain construction projects in progress at December 31, 1998. These include, among 
others, Phase IV of the Arthur Ray Teague Parkway project and projects associated with 
enhancement to the wastewater and water treatment plants. In addition, the City has begun 
prelim inary construction activities associated with a m ulti-purpose arena. As approved by the 
voters, $56,750,000 in sales tax revenue bonds have been issued to fund the Arthur Ray Teague 
Parkway, the arena and other projects. The City has issued approximately $20,790,000 in utility 
revenue bonds to fund the wastewater treatment plant improvements, and other related utility 
improvement projects. Also, $2,565,647 in riverboat gaming revenues have been transferred to the 
W ater and Sewer Fund to help fund utility improvement projects. 
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According to existing legislative acts of the State of Louisiana, the City is required to reimburse the 
Firemeu's Pension and Relief Fund and the Policemen's Pension and Relief Fund for operating 
deficits that m ay occur in any fiscal year. 

Insurance Funds" 

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, theft of, damage to, and destruction of 
assets; errors and omissions and natural disasters. The Insurance and Liability Insurance Funds are 
used to account for self-insured activities involving workmen's compensation coverage and group 
dental coverage. 

The City is self-insured for workmen's compensation coverage and group dental coverage. 
Payments are made from the operating funds to the Insurance Fund and the Liability Insurance Fund 
which are accounted for as internal service funds. Payments are accounted for as revenues by the 
receiving fund and expenditures/expense by the paying funds. The City m aintains stop-loss coverage 
with an insurance company of $225,000 per occurrence for workmen's compensation coverage with 
an aggregate limit of $1,000,000. Employee life insurance premiums are also paid from the 
Insurance Fund. 

Liability policies are maintained by the City with third-party insurance carriers for its automobile, 
general liability, and property damage exposures. These policies are subject to a $1,000,000 per 
occurrence limit with a $50,000 per occurrence retention for claims involving third parties. The City 
maintained property insurance during 1998 on approximately $65.7 million in City property, subject 
to a $50,000 per occurrence retention for property claims. The maximum cumulative amount of self- 
insured retentions related to automobile, general liability , and property claims is $300,000. 

There were no reductions in insurance coverage from coverage in the prior year. No claim s 
exceeded the City 's insurance coverage for each of the past three fiscal years. 

The Hospital is qualified under the State of Louisiana medical malpractice program and has obtained 
coverage for the first $100,000 of professional liability per occurrence through the Louisiana 
ltospital Association Trust Fund (Trust Fund), effective through October 31, 1997, and through a 
comm ercial insurance carrier effective November 1, 1997. Additional coverage is provided by the 
l.ouisiana Patients' Compensation Fund (LPCF) for the next $400,000 of professional liability up to 
the present statutory maximum of $500,000 per claim (exclusive of additional amounts for future 
medical expense provided by law). The Trust Fund and the LPCF provide coverage on an 
occurrence basis, and the com mercial coverage is provided on a claims m ade basis. 

The Hospital provides coverage for paym ent of com pensation and benefits required of employers 
pursuant to the Louisiana W orkers' Compensation Act. The Hospital is partially self-insured for 
workers' compensation claims incurred prior to Novem ber 1, 1998. Com mercial carriers cover 
claims incurred prior to November 1, 1998 exceeding the $200,000 per incident stop-loss limitation 
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A reconciliation of changes in the aggregate liabilities for claim s for the self-insurance funds is as 
follows: 

Insurance Fund 
1997 
1998 

Liability lnsurance 
Fund: 
1997 
1998 

A ccrued 
Claim s 

January l, 

481,231 
522,023 

519,841 
510,314 

Claim s 
Incurred 

3,520,721 
363,976 

847,385 
1,126,130 

Claim s 
Paid 

3,479,929 
850,999 

856,912 
1,120,628 

A ccrued 
Claim s 

D ecem ber 31 

522,023 
35,000 

510,314 
515,816 

As an established practice, the City provides for a portion of the health care costs and life insurance 
costs of all retirees that meet the minimum service requirements of the retirement plan (as described 
in note 9) in which the employee participates. In previous years, the City was self-insured for 
medical benefits. In 1998, the client began participating in a Health M anagement Organizatiou 
(HMO). As a result, the cost of providing benefits 1o the eligible retirees consist of the portion of 
m onthly prem ium s paid for coverage applicable to the retirees. These costs are accounted for on a 
pay-as-you-go basis. At Decem ber 31, 1998, 100 retirees are currently eligible to receive or arc 
recei'ving benef~'ts un6er 'the p~an. The costs of provid, ing 'these benefits totale6 app~oxin~ate~y 
$68,016 for 1998, 

Litigation 

Tile City is defendant in a number of'legal actions, mosl of which are adequately covered by 
insurance. There are certain suits including em ployee discrim ination and civil rights violations suits 
which are in the early stages of discovery and for which the availability of insurance coverage or 
estimates of the ultimate liability of the City cannot be determined. Resolution of some of these 
cases could involve liability to the City in excess of insurance limits if the courts find in favor of the 
various plaintiffs. In the opinion of the City attorney, the City 's ultimate uninsured exposure cannot 
be presently determined. It is the policy of the City to pay uninsured judgments against the City on a 
current basis from the excess of revenues over expenditures. Amounts are accrued under Financial 
Accounting Standards No. 5 as liabilities become probable and can be estimated. 
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Grant D isallowances 

The City participates in federally assisted grant programs, principally Community Development 
Block Grant, and various construction grants. These programs are subject to program compliance 
audits under the Single Audit Act. Sueh audits could lead to requests for reimbursement by the 
grantor agency for expenditures disallowed under terms of the grants. City management believes 
that the amouut of disallowances, if any, which may arise from future audits will not be material. 

Revenues From the State of Louisiana 
The General Fund receives various revenues from the Slate of Louisiana including cigarette tax, beer 
tax and traffic signalization revenues. The continuation of these revenues at these amounts is 
contingent on a variety of factors at the state level. 

(15) Cost in Excess of Acquired Net Assets 
In 1995, Bossier M edical Center purchased the net assets of physician em ployee practices. The cost 
in excess of the fair value of the net assets of the physician practices acquired in the am ount of 
$881,221 is amortized on a straight-line basis over the life of the physicians' contracts with the 
tiospital, not exceeding five years. Amortiza tion expense totaled $153,049 for 1998 and is included 
in depreciation and amortization expense. 

In 1998, Bossier M edical Center wrote off the net unamortized balance of cost in excess of acquired 
net assets totaling $159,222 related to physicians who had term inated em ployment at the M edical 
Center. 

(16) Accounting Changes 

The City implem ented GASB Statement No. 31, Aecounting and Financial Reporting for Certain 
Investments and for External Investment Pools in 1998. This statement establishes accounting and 
financial reporting standards for all investments held by governmental external investment pools. 
For most other governmental entities, it establishes fair value standards for investments in (a) 
participating interest-earning investment contracts, (b) external investment pools, (c) open-end 
mutual funds, (d) debt securities, and (e) equity securities, option contracts, stock warrants, and 
stock rights that have readily determ inable fair values. Under this statement, governm ental entities, 
including governm ental external investm ent pools, should report investm ents at fair value in the 
balauce sheet. The adoption of this statem ent had no effecl for the City. 

(17) Bossier M edical Center Sale 

The Bossier M edical Center's (the "Center") financial statements have been prepared assuming that 
the Center w ill continue as a going concern . For the year ended Decem ber 31, 1998, the Center 
incurred an excess of expenses over revenues of approximately $5,315,000 (including an asset 
impairment loss of approximately $2,275,000 as discussed below), and was not in compliance with 
certain covenants of its revenue bond ordinance. The Center's revenue bonds arc in default as of 
December 31, 1998 and are classified as current liabilities in the balance sheet as of that date. 
M anagement expects the Center to incur additional tosses in 1999. 
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CITY O F BO SSIER CITY, LOUISIANA 

N otes to Com bined Financial Statem ents 

December 31, 1998 

In 1998, the City issued a request for proposal to interested parties for a potential sale of the Center, 
and received an offer and a subsequent amended offer to purchase the Center's property, plant and 
equipmenl, inventory and accrued vacation liability for a price of $18,000,000. Due to the exislenee 
of several impairm ent indicators including the significant operating loss in 1998 and expected future 
losses, the Center's property, plant and equipment have been written down to the estimated fair 
value of $18,000,000 as of December 31, 1998, resulting in an asset impairment loss of 
approximately $2,275,000 for the year ended December 31, 1998. The sale of the Center was 
approved by public referendum on M ay 1, 1999, and is also subject to approval by the office of the 
Attorney General. 

These conditions raise substantial doubt about the Center's ability to continue as a going concern. 
The financial statements of the Center do not include any adjustments to reflect the possible future 
effects on the recoverability and classification of assets or the amounts and classification of 
liabilities that may result from the outcome of this uncertainty. Severance agreements exist for five 
current em ployees of the Bossier M edical Center. Upon the sale of the Center and their term ination 
of employment, approximately $585,000 will be paid under these agreements by the Center. These 
am ounts are not accrued in the accom panying financial statements. 

There are potential liabilities and costs associated with the Center's operations and sale for which 
am ounts are not determ inable at this time. M anagem ent believes that the ultim ate resolulion of any 
uncertainties related to the Center will not have a m aterial adverse effect on the City's financial 
position, results of operations, or liquidity. 
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CITY OF BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIANA 

Required Supplem entary ]nform ation 

Disclosure About Year 2000 Issues 

For the year ended December 31, 1998 
(unaudited) 

The City is currently addressing year 2000 issues relating to its computer system s and other 
electronic equipm ent. The year 2000 issue refers to the fact that m any computer program s use only 
the last two digits to refer to a year. Therefore, both 1900 and 2000 would be referred to as "00". 
Computer programs have to be adjusted to recognize the difference between those two years or the 
programs will fail or create errors. Also, some programs may not be able to recognize that 2000 is a 
leap year. Further, the year 2000 issue could affect electronic equipment-- such as environm ental 
systems, vehicles and medical equipment----containing computer chips that have date recognition 
features. 

The City has com pleted an inventory of com puter systems and other electronic equipment that may 
be affected by the year 2000 issue and that are necessary to conducting City operations. The City 
has identified public safety, financial administration and public works (water/sewer) as mission 
critical system s. 

The City has completed the awareness and assessment stage of work w ith respect to its m ission 
critical system s whereby a plan has been established for dealing with these issues and systems have 
been identified which are in need of year 2000 compliance work. The City is currently w ithin the 
rem ediation stage, during w hich changes are being m ade to system s and equipm ent. The costs 
associated w ith these changes are being funded on a pay as you go basis. Certain of these changes 
require com m itm ents with vendors for assistance in addressing year 2000 issues. As of 
December 31, 1998, the amount of those commitments is approximately $1,200,000. The validation 
and testing phase of the work is targeted to be completed by June 30, 1999. 

Because of the unprecedented nature of the Year 2000 issue, its effects and the success of related 
remediation efforts w ill not be fully determ inable until the year 2000 and thereafter. M anagement 
cannot assure that the City is or will be Year 2000 ready, that the City 's remediation efforts will be 
successful in whole or in part, or that parties with whom the City does business will be year 2000 
ready. 
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CITY O F BO SSIER CITY, LO UISIANA 

N otes to Required Supplem entary Inform ation 

For the year ended Decem ber 31, 1998 
(unaudited) 

The inform ation presented in the required supplem entary schedules was determ ined as part of the actuaria 
valuations at the dates indicated. Additional inform ation as of the latest actuarial valuation follows: 

Valuation date 

Actuarial cost m ethod 

Am ortization m ethod 

Firem en's Fund Polieem en's Fund 

1/1/99 1/1/99 

Entry  age norm al cost Entry  age norm al cost 

Level percentage Level percentage 

Rem aining am ortization period 14 years -closed 14 years - closed 

Asset valuation m ethod 

Actuarial assum ptions 
Investm ent rate of return* 

Projected salary increases* 

*Includes inflation at 

Cost-of-living adjustments 

M arket value 

6.50%  

4.50%  

3.25%  

3.25%  

M arket value 

6.50%  

N /A 

3.25%  

3.25%  



 

C O M BIN IN G A N D 

IN D IV ID U A L FU N D 

A N D A C C O U N T G R O U P 

STA TEM EN TS 

A N D SC H ED U LES 



G O V ER N M EN TA L FU N D S 

~ G EN ERA L FUND 

~ SPECIAL REVEN UE FUNDS 

~ DEBT SERVICE FUNDS 

~ CAPITAL PRO JECTS FUNDS 



G EN ER A L FU N D 

The General Fund is the general operating fund of the City. It is used to 
account for all financial resources except those required to be accounted 
for in another fund. ' 
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Revenues: 
Taxes: 
Sales, net 
Ad valorem 
Utility 
'I elephone 
Franchise: 
Cable television 
Chain store 
Taxi 

Licenses and perm its 

CITY OF BOSSIER CITY, LO UISIANA 

General Fund 

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, an d 
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget an d Actual on a Budgetary Basis 

Year ended December 3 I, 1998 
with comparative actual figures for year ended December 31, 1997 

ntergovernmental: 
Grants 
State and parish revenues: 
Supplemental pay 
Cigarette tax 
Beer tax  
Special funds from State of 
Louisiana 

Fines and penalties 
Racing Comm ission - Louisiana Downs 
Video poker 
Interest 
Sanitation charges 
M iscellaneous: 
Payment in lieu of taxes - Federal Housing 
Authority 

Parks and recreation 
Engineering fees 
Enterprise funds and Civic Center 
Fund pro rata share of general 
and adm inistrative expenses 

Police Department revenues 
Other income 

Total revenues 

Budg~ 

6,008,217 
6,147,270 
949,000 
195.000 

355,000 
52,000 
2,500 

13.708,987 

on a 
Budgetary 
Basis 

6,058,639 
6,214,086 
976,584 
202,619 

355,000 
54,035 

313 
3,861,276 

780,000 1,903,456 

089,242 
236,000 
100,000 

172,000 
1,752,242 

668,000 
300,000 
450,000 
100,000 
640,000 

50,000 
150,000 
25.000 

416,500 
205,000 
255,000 

1,101,500 

21,500,729 

96,634 

056,015 
235,413 
131,271 

167,830 
1,687,163 

998,030 
325,271 
431,185 
88,615 
642,548 

54,978 
247,335 
10,502 

402,500 
239,757 
279,200 
1,234,272 

22,171,816 

Variance 
Favorable 

(Unfavorable) 

50,422 
66,816 
27,584 
7,619 

2,035 
(2,187) 
152,289 

123,456 

(58,366) 

(33,227) 
(587) 

31,271 

(4,170) 
(65,079) 

330,030 
25,271 
(18,815) 
(11,385) 
2,548 

4,978 
97,335 
(14,498) 

(14,000) 
34,757 
24,200 
132,772 

671,087 

Exhibit A-2 

1997 
A ctual on a 
Budgetary  
Basis 

7,000,717 
5,724,385 
946,014 
195.150 

374,678 
44,761 
2,547 

4,288,252 

844.425 

141,454 

014,158 
235,413 
91.934 

172.592 

710,104 
303,304 
173,335 
33,112 
639.911 

54,369 
251,402 
26,587 

402,500 
203.415 
301,095 

1,239,368 

21,887,362 

(Continued) 



CITY OF BOSSIER CITY, LO UISIANA 

General Fund 

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and 
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget an d Actual on a Budgetary Basis 

Expenditures: 
Current: 
General government: 
Administration 
M unicipal building 
Finance 
City garage 
Traffic engineering and safety 
Purchasing 
Engineering 
Personnel 
Perm its and inspections 
City attorney 
Public works 
City Council 
Community development 
Animal control 
Information services 
Iterbicide 
Payments to other governmental agencies 

Solid waste 

Public safety 
Fire 

I lighways an d streets 
Culture and recreation 
City Court and M arshal 
City Court 
M arshal's office 

qotal expenditures 

Excess of expenditures over revenoes 

Other financing sources (uses): 
Operating transfers in 
q ransfer to component unit 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues and 
other sources over expenditures 
and other uses 

Fund balance at beginning of year 

Fund balance at end of year 

1998 

251,882 
956,168 
562,709 
539,861 
648,501 
290,968 
557,665 
127.270 
413,896 
186,325 
178,995 
165,589 
262,876 
217,267 
340,181 
157,490 
745,930 

~ctltat on ~t v arlaltce 
Budgetary Favorable 
Basis (Unfavorable) 

301,794 
069,840 
589,015 
486,465 
620,649 
287,584 
538,492 
129,830 
406,526 
182,019 
184,385 
175,299 
205,545 
207,697 
405,821 
162,599 
741.678 

(49,912) 
(113,672) 
(17,306) 
53,396 
27,852 
3,384 
19,173 
(2,560) 
7,370 
4,306 
(5,390) 
(9,710) 
57,331 
9.570 

(65,640) 
(5,109) 
4,252 

6,603,573 6,686,238 (82,665) 
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1997 
Actual on a 
Budgelary  

Basis 

253,227 
918,072 
514,230 
521,687 
611,802 
284,320 
525,153 
122,508 
389,496 
189,238 
287,962 
150~ 17 
215,620 
210,805 
299,810 
144,918 
795,318 

6.434,783 

2,036,171 1,856,190 179,981 1,872,005 

5~16,677 
8,015,818 

3,632~95 

825,209 
098,128 

406,106 
415,187 
821,293 

25.016,869 

6,050,359 
7,917,886 
3,968,245 

825,058 
1,349,568 

371,410 
415,301 
786,711 

25,472,010 

(3,516,140) (3,300,194) 

3.534,740 
(51,600) 

3,483,140 

3,534,739 
(51,600) 

3.483.139 

(433,682) 
97,932 

(335.750) 

151 
(251,440} 

34,696 
(114) 

34.582 

215.946 

(tl 

(1) 

182,945 215,945 

4,389,701 4,389,70 

4.356.70 

See accompanying notes to combined financial statements. 

4.572,646 215.945 

5,671,185 
7.620.148 

883,776 
,382,773 

371,564 
390.877 
762.44 

24.627 

(2,739,749) 

3,200,351 
(51,600) 

3.148.751 

409,002 

3.980,699 

4,389,70 



SPEC IA L R EV EN U E 
FU N D S 

Special revenue funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific 

revenue sources (other than expendable trust or major capital projects) 
that ar e legally restricted to expenditures for specified purposes. The City 
has seven special revenue funds. 

State and Federal G rant --  This fun d accounts for the receipt and 
disbursem ent of fun ds received un der the Com m unity Developm ent 
Block Grant and other grant program s. 

Court W itness Fee --  This fund accounts for the proceeds of a special 
case charge on crim inal m atters. The revenues generated are dedicated to 
the paym ent of a special witness fee to law officers who ar e called to 
testify in City Court. 

Civic Center --  This fund accounts for the revenues received and 
operating expenses incurred in the operations of the City's Civic Center 
Com plex. 

Fire Im provem ents and O perations --  This fund accounts for the 
revenues received and operating expenses incurred in the construction aald 
operation of two new fire stations and a new training facility. 

Jail and M unicipal Buildings --  This fund accounts for the revenues 
received and the operating expenses incurred to operate and m aintain the 
City Jail in accordance w ith Federally M andated Standards and to operate 
and m aintain City buildings. 

Streets and D rainage --  This fund accounts for the revenues received 
and the operating expenses incurred in m aintaining and upgrading streets 
and drainage. 

Riverboat G am ing --  This fund accounts for the m onthly paym ents 
m ade by the riverboats of the City's percentage of their nm nthly 
revenues. The funds w ill be used for capital and other undeterm ined 

projects. 
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CITY O F BO SSIER CITY, LO UISIANA 

Special Revenue Fund 
Civic Center Fund 

Statem ent of Revenues, Expenditures, and 
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual 

Decem ber 31, 1998 
with comparative totals for year ended Decem ber 31, 1997 

Revenues: 
Intergovernmental - state and parish 
shared revenues 

Rental fees 
Interest 
M iscellaneous 

Total revenues 

Expenditures: 
Culture and recreation: 
Salaries, fringe benefits, and 
payroll taxes 

Insurance 
Professional services 
Utilities 
Office and operating supplies 
Adm inistrative expenses 
Travel and training 
M aintenance 
Other 

Capital outlay 
Total expenditures 

Budget Actual 

525,000 
200,000 
30,000 
18.000 

773.000 

244,966 
20,000 
3,000 
91,000 
38,100 
10,000 
4~000 
23,750 
28,000 

1.850.000 

2.312.816 

1,212,529 
175,652 
76,473 
31,507 

1,496,16 

236,365 
10.603 

50,685 
37,105 
5,893 
1,652 

20,196 
22,040 

2,191,172 
2,575,711 

V ariance 
Favorable 

(Unfavorable) 

687,529 
(24,348) 
46,473 
13,507 

723.161 

8,601 
9,397 
3,000 
40,315, 

995 
4,107 
2,348 
3,554 
5,960 

(341,172) 
(262,895) 

Exhibit B-3 

1997 

Actua 

64,363 
73,794 
70,540 
22,962 

1,431,659 

225,804 
21,146 
3,000 
74,428 
34,507 
2,430 
3,782 
20,586 
25,232 
43,559 
454.474 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
over expenditures (1,539,816) (1,079,550) 460,266 977,185 

Fund balance at beginning of year 2,056,984 2,056,984 

Fund balance at end of year 517,168 

See accom panying notes to com bined financial statements 

977.434 460,266 

1,079,799 

2,056,984 



Revenues: 
Sales tax, net 
Interest 
M iscellaneous 

Total revenues 

CITY O F BO SSIER CITY, LO UISIANA 

Special Revenue Fund 
Fire Im provem ents and Operations Fund 

Statem ent of Revenues, Expenditures, and 
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual 

December 31, 1998 
with com parative actual figures for the year ended December 31, 1997 

Expenditures - capital outlay 

Excess of revenues over 
expenditures 

Budget Actual 

1,304,109 
7,500 

1,311,609 

1,311,609 

Other financing use - operating tran sfer out (1,300,000) 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over 
expenditures and other 
financing use 

Fund balance at beginning of year 

Fund balance at end of year 

11,609 

628,266 

639.875 

See accompan ying notes to combined finan cial statements 

67 

1,322,564 
16,271 

214,479 
1,553,314 

534,407 

1.018.907 

(1,300,000) 

v ariance 
Favorable 

(Unfavorable) 

18,455 
8,771 

214,479 

241,705 

(534,407) 

(292,702) 

(281,093) (292,702) 

628,266 

347,173 (292,702) 
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1997 

Aetua 

255,599 
34,114 
14.500 

1,304,213 

0.750 

1,193,463 

(1,209,000) 

(15,537) 

643.803 

628.266 



Revenues: 
Sales tax, net 
Interest 

Total revenues 

CITY O F BOSSIER CITY, LO UISIANA 

Special Revenue Fund 
Jail and M unicipal Buildings Fund 

Statem ent of Revenues, Expenditures, and 
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual 

Decem ber 31, 1998 
with comparative actual figures for the year ended December 31, 1997 

Expenditures - capital outlay 

Excess of revenues over 
expenditures 

1998 

Budget Actual 

931,507 
32,000 
963,507 

963.507 

Other financing use- operating transfer 
out (813,507) 

Excess ofrevenues over 
expenditures and other use 

Fund balance at beginning of year 

944,690 
110,116 

1.054.806 

1,054,806 

(813,507) 

150,000 241,299 

958,973 1,958,973 

Fund balance at end of year $ 2,108,973 

See accompanying notes to com bined financial statem ents. 

68 

2,200,272 

v ariance 

Favorable 
(Unfavorable) 

13,183 
78,116 
91,299 

91,299 
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1997 

Actua 

896,856 
107.611 

1,004,467 

1,004,467 

(590,004) 

91,299 414,463 

1,544,510 

91,299 958,973 



Revenues: 
Sales tax, net 
Interest 

Total revenues 

CITY O F BOSSIER CITY, LO UISIANA 

Special Revenue Fund 
Streets and Drainage Fund 

Statem ent of Revenues, Expenditures, and 
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actua 

December 31, 1998 
with comparative actual figures for the year ended Decem ber 31, 1997 

Expenditures - capital outlay 

Excess of revenues 
over expenditures 

Budget Actual 

1,071,233 
10,000 
081,233 

1,086,392 
64,713 
151.105 

variance 

Favorable 
(Unfavorable) 

15,159 
54,713 
69,872 

Exhibit B-6 

1997 

Actual 

1,031,385 
64,800 
096,185 

650,000 544,495 105,505 1,087,318 

431,233 606,610 175,377 8,867 

Other financing use - operating transfer 
out (431,233) (431,233) 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
over expenditures and other use 

Fund balance at beginning of year 

Fund balance at end of year 

(lo5,ooo) 

75,377 175,377 (96,133) 

963,116 963,116 

963,116 

See accom panying notes to com bined financial statem ents. 

1,138,493 175,377 

1,059,249 

963.116 



D EBT SER V IC E 

FU N D S 

The debt service funds are used to account for the accum ulation of 
resources for, and the paym ent of, general long-term  debl principal, 
interest, and related costs. The debt serv ice funds receive a portion of ad 
valorem and sales taxes paid to the City. 

Sales Tax Bond Sinking and Reserve Fund --  U sed to account for the 
accum ulation of resources for, and the paym ent of, general long-term debt 
principal, interest, an d related costs of the 1979, 1991, 1993, and 1998 
bond series. 

Parkw ay Sales Tax Bond Sinking and Reserve Fund -- Used to 
account for the accum ulation of resources for, an d the paym ent of, 
general long-term  debt principal, interest, and related costs of the 1987, 
1989, 1992, and 1997 bond series. 



 

Assets 

Cash and cash equivalents 

Accrued interest 

Due from other funds - Sales Tax 
Capital Im provements Fund 

Total assets 

Liabilities 

Due to other funds - Parkway 
Capital Projects Fund 

CITY O F BO SSIER CITY, LO UISIANA 

Debt Service Funds 
Bond and Interest Sinking Funds 

Combining Balance Sheet 

December 31, 1998 
with comparative totals for 1997 

Parkway 
Sales Sales Tax 

Tax Bond Bond Sinking 
Sinking and and Reserve 
Reserve Fund Fund 

Totals 

Exhibit C-I 

$ 4,480,082 2,534,611 7,014,693 6,408,725 

64,202 36,000 100,202 73,680 

183,06 

$ 4,727,345 2,570,611 

183,06 

7,297,956 6,482,405 

223,445 223,445 50,000 

Fund balances - reserved for debt 
service 4,727,345 2,347,166 7,074,511 6,432,405 

Total liabilities and fund balance $ 4,727,345 

See accom panying notes to combined financial statements 

2,570,6 7,297,956 6,482,405 



CITY O F BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIANA 

Debt Service Funds 
Bond and Interest Sinking Funds 

Combining Statem ents of Revenues, Expenditures, 
and Changes in Fund Balances 

Year ended Decem ber 3 I, 1998 
with comparative totals for year ended Decem ber 3 I, 1997 

Revenues: 
Taxes - sales, net 
Interest 
M iscellaneous other incom e 

Total revenues 

Expenditures - debt service: 
Principal retirem ent 
Advance refunding escrow 
Interest and fiscal charges 

Total expenditures 

Excess of revenues over 
expenditures 

Other financing sources (uses): 
Proceeds of bond issuance 
Proceeds of refunding bonds 
Paym ents to refunded bond 

Parkway 
Sales Sales Tax 

Tax Bond Bond Sinking 
Sinking and and Reserve 
Reserv e Fund Fund 

2,925,546 
278.891 

970,313 
159,942 
1,762 

Totals 

Exhibit C-2 

4,895,859 
438,833 
1,762 

4,049,218 
470.170 

3,204,437 2,132,017 5,336,454 4,519,388 

1,110,000 815.000 1.925.000 

1,634,827 1,158,949 2,793,776 
2,744,827 1,973,949 4,718,776 

1,960,000 
201,363 

2,040,145 

4,201,508 

459,610 158,068 617,678 317,880 

2,211,203 

escrow agent 
Operating transfer out - Sales Tax 
Capital Improvements Fund (1,828,330) 

Operating transfer out - Parkway 
Capital Projects Fund 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
and other sources over 

382,873 

2,211,203 

(1,828,330) 

(358,445) (358,445) 
(358,445) 24.428 

8,588,252 

(8,588,252) 

(50,000) 
(50,000) 

expenditures and other uses 842
,483 (200,377) 642,106 267,880 

Fund balances at the beginning of year 
. 

3,884,862 2,547,543 6,432,405 6,164,525 

Fund balances at the end of year $ 
_  

4,727,345 2,347,166 7,074,51 I 6,432,405 

See accom panying notes to com bined financial statements 
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C A PITA L PR O JEC TS 
FU N D S 

Capital projects funds are used to account for financial resources to be 
used for the acquisition or construction of major capital facilities (other 
than those finan ced by proprietary funds an d trust funds). Brief 
descriptions of each fund follow : 

Sales Tax Capital Im provem ent Fund --  This fund is used to account 
for expenditures associated with street im provem ents, the Shed Road 

projects, an d the Golden W est project an d is funded by the excess one- 
half cent sales tax after paym ent of debt service sales tax revenue bond 
issues and interest earned. 

Parkway Capital Projects Fund --  This fund is used to account for 
m iscellan eous capital expenditures as budgeted by the City Council and is 
funded by the excess one-half cent sales tax after paym ent of debt service 
on the Parkway Bond Issue and interest earned. 

1989 Parkw ay Bond Construction Fund --  This fund is used to 
account for expenditures associated with the Arthur Ray Teague Par kway 
construction, A irline Drive w idening and utility relocation, Shed Road 

Phase 11 and Phase lIl, and Canes Landing projects and is funded by the 
1989 Parkway Bond proceeds and interest earned. 

1998 Parkw ay Bond Construction Fund I  This fund is used to 
account for expenditures associated w ith the Arthur Ray Teague Parkway 
and is funded by the 1998 bond proceeds and interest earned. 

1998 Arena Bond Construction Fund --  This fund is used to account 
for expenditures associated w ith the construction of a m ulti-purpose ar ena 
and is funded by the 1998 bond proceeds and interest earned. 

Special Project Fund --  This fund is used to account for expenditures 
associated w ith the com pletion of the Arthur Ray Teague Parkway an d is 
funded ~ ith the refunding of the 1979 Single Fam ily M ortgage Revenue 
Bond Issue. N o m ore funds w ill be transferred into this fund. 

Land Acquisition Fund I  This fund is used to account for special lan d 
purchases and sales not associated with bond issue related expenditures. 



Equipm ent Replacem ent Fund --  This fund is used to account for 
purchases and sales of various equipm ent not associated w ith bond issue 
related expenditures. 

Riverboat Gaming Capital Projects Fund --  This fund is used to 
account for expenditures associated with downtown development, major 
park improvements, and other major capital projects and is funded by the 
initial paym ents m ade by three riverboat casinos an d related interest 
earnings. 
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PR O PR IE T A R Y 

A N D FID U C IA R Y 
FU N D S 

~ ENTERPRISE FUNDS 

~ INTERN AL SERVICE FUNDS 

~ FIDUCIARY FUNDS 



EN TER PR ISE 

FU N D S 

The enterprise funds are used to account for operations that ar e financed 
an d operated in a manner similar to private businessenterp rises in that the 
cost of goods and services ar e recovered prim ar ily through user char ges. 
Accountability over enterprise funds ar e directed at the periodic 
determ ination of revenues earned, expenses incurred, and net incom e. 

The enterp rise funds reported in this section ar e as follow s 

Departm ent of W ater and Sew erage --  Operated as a self-sustaining 
utility of the City an d is responsible for providing the residents of the City 
of Bossier City, Louisiana, with water and sew erage treatm ent. 

Bossier M edical Center --  A m unicipal health care facility owned an d 
operated by the City of Bossier City, Louisian a. 

Em ergency M edical Services --  Operated as a self-sustaining serv ice of 
the City an d is responsible for providing the residents of the City of 
Bossier City, Louisiana, w ith em ergency m edical services. 



CITY OF BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIANA 

Enterprise Funds 

Combining Balance Sheel 

December 31, 1998 
with comparative totals for 1997 

Department 
of W ater 

and Sewerage 

Bossier 
M edical 
Center 

Current assets: 
('ash and cash equivalents 9,494,785 197,468 

Accounts receivable - customers 
Less allowance for doubtful accounts 

Accrued interest receivable 
Others accounts receivable 
Prepaid expenses 
Inventories. at cost 

"1 oral current assets 

Restricted assets: 
Cash an d cash equivalents 
Investments, at cost 
Accrued interest 

Properly, plant an d equipment: 
l,and and lan d improvements 
W ater reservoir and trea'tlnent plant 
P.uildings 
Transm ission mad distribution system 
Fquipment 

Less accumulated depreciation 

Construction in progress 
Net properly, plant and 
equipment 

Other assets: 
Cost in excess of acquired net assets, 
less accumulated amorli:,~tion 

Deferred bond costs, at cost less 
amortization 

Olher as sets 
"1 otal other assets 

"Iotala-ssets 

963,297 
(79,551) 
883.746 

129.298 
157,644 

228,140 
0,893,613 

8,920.473 
. 

121.104 
9,041,577 

583,508 
35.362,598 

28,239,380 
4,211,960 
68,397,446 
(24,602,843) 
43,794,603 
18,634,335 

62,428.938 

369,675 
241,667 

$ 82,975,470 

10,544,934 
(2,027,000) 

189,326 
549,939 
879,172 

0,333,839 

8,335,105 
250.000 

8,585,105 

1.884.628 

14,439,973 

37,122,390 
53,446,991 
(35,634.794) 
7,812,197 
187,803 

18,000,000 

8,713 
8,713 

36,937,657 

Emergency 
M edical 
Services 

414,355 

404,122 
(87,630) 
316,492 

736,478 

1,064,525 
1.064,525 
(778,078) 
286,447 

022,925 

Exhibit E-I 

Totals 

0,106.608 14,478,794 

11,912,353 
(2,194.181) 
9,718,172 

134,929 
346.970 
549.939 
107,312 

21,963,930 

17,255,578 
250,000 
121,104 

7,626,682 

2,468,136 
35,362,598 
14,439,973 
28,239,380 
42,398,875 
122,908.962 
(61,015,715) 
61,893,247 
18.822,138 

80,715,385 

369,675 
260.380 
630,055 

20,936,052 

14,703.199 
(3.132,048) 

,571A5 

131,267 
952,694 
616,513 
,206.000 

28,956,419 

6,907,838 
1,197,630 
132.857 

2,439,893 
35,351,933 
12,938,167 
26,812,527 
41,015,131 
118.557,651 
(54,308,009) 
64,249,642 
5,186,436 

69,436,078 

312,271 

523,375 
262.388 
098.034 

17,728,856 

(Continued) 



Liabilities, Contributions and 
Retained Earnings 

CITY OF BOSSIER CITY, LO UISIANA 

Enterprise Funds 

Currcnl liabilities (payable from current assets): 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 
Accrued vacation 
Amounts due to third-party payors 
Estimates and retainages payable 
Refundable deposits 

1 oral current liabilities (payable 
from current assets) 

Current liabilities (payable from restricted assets) 
Accrued interest on revenue bonds 
Current portion of long-term debt 

"1 oral eurrenl liabilities (payable 
from rcstricted assets) 

Total current liabilities 

.ong-tcrm debt 
Total liabilities 

Fund equity: 
Contributions: 
(ontributions from municipality 
( ontributinns from Federal Revenue 
Sharing Fund 

Contributions from Riverboat GaminS Fund 
Contributions from Public Improvement 
Sales ]ax Bond Fund 

Contribulions from Sales Tax Capital Fund 
(ontribulions from subdividers and 
custom ers 

Contributions from other governmental 
agencies 

~ onlribufons fronl Consolidated 
Debt Service Fund 

Contributions from capital additions 
Contributions from Bond and Interest 
Sinking Fund 
3oral contributions 

Retained earn ings: 
Reserved for revenue bond requirements 
Unreserved 

3olal retained earnings 

1oral fund equity 

Combining Balance Sheet 

Department 
of W ater 

and Sewerage 

33,457 
47,815 

19,033 
71,301 

011.716 

17,178,559 
20,761,881 

Bossier 
M edical 
Center 

2,481,212 
968,853 
285,805 

179,620 
4,710,000 

4,889,620 
8,625,490 

8,625,490 

9,995,101 2,922,230 

2,291,175 
2,220,048 

2,647,073 
2,832,195 

1,775,691 

860,942 
221,860 

421,341 
45,196,488 

804,419 
6,212,682 
7.017.10 

62,213,589 

$ 82,975,470 

See accompanying notes to combined financial statements. 

Emergency 
M edical 
Services 

52,26 

52,26 

,278 

2,697 

Exhibit E-I, (?ont. 

3,766,930 
1,116,668 
285,805 

1,119,033 
171,301 

6A59.737 

406,336 
5,495,000 

5,901,336 
2.361,073 

29,539,632 

4,638,382 
1,010,948 

179,465 
213~084 

6,041,879 

391,377 
,255,000 

7,870,106 

2,922,230 3,975 48,122,693 

892,663 
24,497,274 
25,389,937 

28,312,167 

36,937,657 

866,689 
1,697~082 

41,576,645 

2,346,176 
9,654,401 

2,712,023 
2,524,901 

1,819,297 

2,216,347 

860,942 
221,860 

421,341 
45,815,567 

1,729,454 
44,625.473 

866,689 43,273,727 46,354.927 

870,664 

022,925 

91,396,420 

20,936,052 

92.170.494 



Operating revenues: 
Charges for services: 
M etered water sales 
Sev,,eTage ~ rvice charges 
Revenue from hospital services 
Ambulance fees 

M isce llaneous - other revenues 
3ota] revenues 

Operating expe nses: 
Personal services 
Supplies 
Utilities 
Repairs and m aintenance  
Provision for bad debts 
Other medical 
M iscellaneous 
l)epreeiation and amorlization 

Total expe nses 

Ope rating income (loss) 

Nonoperating revenues (expe nses): 
Interest incom e 
Interest expense 
Amorlization 
Asset impairment 
Restricted donation 

CITY O F BO SSIER CITY, LOUISIANA 

Enterprise Funds 

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and 
Changes in Retained Earnings 

Year ended Dece mber 3 I, 1998 
with co mparative totals for year ended December 3 I, 1997 

Other, net 
Total nonope rating revenues 
(expe nses) 

Income (loss) before operating 
transfers 

Operating transfers out 
Net income (loss) 

Department 
of W ater 

and Sewerage 

269.705 
9,486,273 

2,858,364 
698,964 
534,593 
540,523 
60,169 

1,283,309 
1,57~970 
7,555,892 

,930,38 

1,088,381 
(861,218) 
(133,758) 

Bossier 
M edical 
Center 

45,977,869 

433,345 
46,411,214 

24,592,725 
7,238,938 
806,859 
249,075 

3,186,848 
10,431,337 

2,885,248 
49,391,030 

(2,979,816) 

Em ergency 
M edical 
Services 

Totals 

Exhibil E-2 

4,383,520 
4,833~48 

- 45,977,869 
2,081,626 2,081,626 
2,081,626 
40,235 743,285 

2,121,86 

1,493,676 
72,230 
24,745 
33,407 
149,594 

27,581 
20,206 

2,021,439 

00,422 

436,973 25,649 
(497,525) 

(2,274,752) 

58,019,348 

28,944,765 
8,010,132 
1,366,197 
823,005 

3,396,611 
10,431,337 
1,410,890 
4,585,424 
58,968,36 

(949,013) 

1,551,003 
(I,358,743) 
(133,758) 

(2,274,752) 

(1,633) 

4,065,358 
4,654,291 
47,898.609 
1,845.577 

720,284 
59.184.119 

27,966,390 
7,591,566 
1,137,764 
803,309 

4,544,520 
9,128,882 
1,185,313 
4,30~178 
56,657.922 

2,526,197 

1,898,505 
(1,205,768) 
(169,984) 

19,918 
(5,936) 

91.772 (2,335,304) 25,649 (2,217,883) 536,735 

2.022,153 (5,315,120) 126.071 (3.166.896) 3,062,932 

Amounts charged to contribution 
accounts - depreciation on 
contributed assets 635.696 

Retained earnings at beginning of year 
as previously reported 

Less prior period adjustments 
Retained earnings at beginning of year 
as restated 

4,359,252 

4,359,252 

Retained earnings at end of year, 
a.~ restatexl $ 17,017.10 

See acco mpanying notes to combined financial statements. 
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(550,000) (550,000) (550,000) 
(5,865,120) 126,071 (3,716,896) 2,512,932 

25,389~937 

740,618 

740.618 

866,689 

635.696 

46,354,927 

46,354,927 

636,868 

44,180,081 

(974,954 

46,354.927 



CITY OF BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIANA 

Enterprise Funds 

Combining Statement of Cash Flows 

Year ended December 31, 1998 
with comparative totals for year ended Dece mber 3 I, | 997 

Cas h flows from operating activities: 
Operating income (loss) 
Adjustments to reconcile operating income 
to nel cash provided by operating activities 
Depreciation and amortization 
Provision for bad debts 
W rite-off of co st in excess of acquired net 
assets and abandoned construction project 

(Increase) decrease in assets: 
Accounts receivable 
Other receivable 
Prepaid expe nses 
Inventories 
Other assets 

Increase (decrease) in liabilities: 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 
Accrued vacation 
Due to olher funds 
Refundable deposits 
Other liabilities 
Net cas h provided by ope rating 

activities 

Net cash used by noncapital finan cing 
activities - operating transfer out 

Cash flows from capital and related financing 
activities: 
Acquisilion and construction of capital assets 
Contributions received for purchase of 
properly and equipment 

Principal paid on revenue bond maturities 
Interest paid on revenue bo nds 
Proceeds of revenue bonds 

Net cash used in capital an d 
related finan cing activities 

(?ash fJows from investing activities: 
Purchases and sales of investments 
Interest received 

Net cash provided by investing 
activities 

Department 
of W ater 

and Sewerage 

Bossier Em ergency 
M edical M edical 
Center Services 

1,930,381 (2,979,816) 

579,970 2,885,248 
60,169 3,186,848 

4.037,302 

00.422 

20,206 
49,594 

Exhibit E-3 

Totals 

(949,013) 2,526,197 

4,585,424 
3,396,611 

4,300,178 
4,544.520 

59.222 159,222 77.65 

(1,122,556) (303,180) 
337,722 
55,574 
114,032 
(6,325) 

(25,827) 28,749 
100,614 

2,704,736 95.79 

(1,543,632) 
616,724 
55,574 
98,688 
2,008 

353,919 
105,720 

(41,783) 
(1,633) 

(5,552,402) 
(663,873) 
(189.934) 
(290,771) 
(243,733) 

948,526 
53,225 
(4,000) 
(72,474) 
(5~36) 

6,837,829 5,427.174 

(550.000) 

(15,010,695) (2,857,817) (117,922) 07,986,434) (8,951,188) 

2,942,822 
(740,000) 
(827,847) 
4,685,730 

(515,000) 
(378,272) 

(8,949,990) (3,751,089) 

097,483 

097.483 

947~630 
436,973 

,384,603 

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash (3,815,205) (211,750) 
equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 22
,230,463 8.744.323 

Ce.sh an d cash equivalents at end of year $ 18,415,258 

Noncas h transactions 
Am ortization 

2,942,822 
(1,255,000) 
(1,206,119) 
4.685,730 

(117,922) (12,819,001) 

24,640 

24,640 

947,630 
559.096 

2,506,726 

5,568,148 
(1,190,000) 
(I.228,812) 
417,730 

0,097,630) 
1,804,345 

(4,024,446) 199,767 

411.846 31.386,632 31,186,865 

27,362,186 31,386,632 

$ 133,758 137,665 271
.423 

See accompanying notes to combined financial statements
. 

69,984 



IN TER N A L SER V IC E 

FUN D S 

The internal service funds are used to account for the costs of providing 
insurance coverage for the City. The City has two internal service funds. 

Insurance Fund --  This fund is used to account for contributions from 
City departm ents and w ithholdings from em ployee's payroll used to pay 
the costs of providing group dental coverage for City em ployees. 

Liability Insurance Fund --  This fund is used to account for 
contributions from City departm ents for th e paym ent of workm en's 
com pensation an d liability insurance claim s. 



Assets 

C ITY O F BO SSIER CITY, LO UISIANA 

Intern al Service Funds 

Com bining Balance Sheet 

Decem ber 31, 1998 
with comparative totals for 1997 

Insurance 
Fond 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 123,417 
Prepaid expense 

Total assets 

Liabilities and 
Retained Earnings (Deficit) 

Accounts payable $ 
Accrued claim s 
Due lo other funds - General 
Fund 

Total liabilities 

Retained earn ings (deficit) - unreserved 

Total liabilities and 
retained earnings 
(deficit) 

Liability 
Insurance 
Fund 

557,345 
148,246 

Totals 

Exhibit F-1 

680,762 
148,246 

299,267 
197,114 

123,417 705,591 829,008 496,38 

5,567 
35,000 

40,567 

82,850 

123,417 

See accom panying notes to com bined financial statem ents 
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36,967 42,534 
515,816 550,816 

45,373 
1,032,337 

483,752 
552,783 593,350 1,561,462 

152,808 235,658 (1,065,081) 

705,591 829,008 496.38 



CITY O F BO SSIER CITY, LO UISIANA 

Internal Service Funds 

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and 
Changes in Retained Earnings (Deficit) 

Year ended Decem ber 31, 1998 
with comparative totals for year ended December 31, 1997 

Insurance 
Fund 

Liability 
Insurance 
Fund 

Totals 

Exhibit F-2 

Revenues: 
Em ployers' contributions/ 
prem ium s 1,100,000 1,764,981 2,864,981 3,303,148 

Em ployees' contributions 144,151 - 144,151 655,450 
Refunds and reim bursem ents 387,957 135,684 523,641 491,999 

Total revenues 1,632,108 1,900,665 3,532,773  4,450,597 

Expenses - m iscellaneous: 
C laim s 363,976 
1,egal fees 
Em ployee insurance prem ium s 102,684 
Other 31,450 

Total expenses 498,110 

Net incom e 1,133,998 

Retained earnings (deficit) 
at beginning of year (1,051,148) 

Retained earn ings (deficit) 
at end of year 82,850 

1,126,130 
127,469 
427,447 
52,878 

1,733,924 

See accompanying notes to com bined financial statem ents. 

166,741 

(13,933) 

152,808 

1,490,106 
127,469 
530,131 
84,328 

2,232,034 

4,368,106 
116,034 
703,399 
85,177 

5,272,716 

1,300,739 (822,119) 

(1,065,081) (242,962) 

235,658 (I,065,081) 



CITY O F BO SSIER CITY, LO UISIANA 

Internal Service Funds 

Com bining Statem ent of Cash Flows 

Year ended Decem ber 3 I, 1998 
with comparative totals for year ended December 31, 1997 

Cash flows from operating activities: 
Operating income 

Adjustments to reconcile operating income 
(loss) to net cash provided (used) by 
operating activities: 

(Increase) decrease in assets: 
Prepaid expense and other 
Due from ~ther funds 

Increase (decrease) in liabilities: 
Accounts payable 
Due to other funds 
Accrued claims 

Net cash provided (used) 
by operating activities 

Net increase (decrease) in cash 

Cash and cash equivalents at 
beginning of year 

Cash and cash equivalents at 
end of year 

Insurance 
Fund 

Exhibit F-3 

Liability 
Insurance Totals 
Fund 

$ 1,133,998 166,741 1,300,739 (822,119) 

(39,806) 
(483,752) 
(487,023) 

123.417 

48,868 

36,967 

5,502 

258.078 

48,868 

(2,839) 
(483,752) 
(481,52t) 

381.495 

(10,417) 
165,000 

45,373 
483,752 
31,265 

(107,146) 

123~417 258,078 381,495 (107,146) 

23.417 

See accom panying notes to combined financial statements. 

299,267 299,267 406,413 

680.762 299,267 



FID U C IA R Y 

FU N D S 

Pension Trust Funds --  The pension trust funds are used to account for 
assets held by the City in a trustee capacity. The pension trust funds 
reported in this section are the Firem cn's Pension and Relief Fund, the 
Policcm en's Pension an d Relief Fund, and the Bossier M edical Center 
Pension Fund. 

A gency Funds --  The Consolidated Sales Tax Fund accounts for the 
collection of a two percent City sales an d use tax an d the distribution of 

this tax to the various funds which account for operations and projects for 
which the tax w as levied. This fund also accounts for the collection an d 
distribution of sales taxes levied by the Bossier Parish School Board an d 
var ious m unicipalities w ithin the par ish. The Riverboat Gam ing Agency 
Fund accounts for the receipt an d disbursem ent of funds from the 
riverboats that the City receives an d disburses to other local govern m ent 
agencies in accordan ce with the contractual provisions. 
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Cash and cash equivalents 
Investments, at fair value: 
U.S. treasury bonds and U.S 
government and agency 
obligations 

M ortgage-backed securities 
M utual funds 

Accrued interest receivable 
Otherreceivables 

Total assets 

CITY OF BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIANA 

Pension Trust Funds 

Combining Statement of Plan Net Assets 

December 3 I, 1998 
with comparative totals for December 31, 1997 

Firem en's 
Pension and 
Relief Fund 

Policem en's 
Pension and 
Relief Fund 

Bossier 
M edical 
Center 
Pension 
Fund 

Exhibit G-2 

Totals 

686,153 595,397 611,563 1,893,113 1,522,654 

10,657,641 
5,314,268 

5,971,909 

134.166 

16,792,228 

Fund balance reserved for 
employees retirement 
system $ 16,792,228 

See accompanying notes to combined financial statements. 

4,131,337 

4,726,734 

4,726,734 

5,978,585 

489.061 
6,467,646 

81,952 

7,161,161 

7.161.16 

20,767,563 
5,314,268 
489.061 

26,570,892 

216,118 

28,680,123 

28,680,123 

6,662,669 
6,181,473 
485.356 

23,329,498 

231.67 

25,083,823 

25,083,823 



Additions 
Sales taxes, nel 
Contributions from City: 
Fire insurance premiums 
Employer's contributions 
City court fines 
City liquor licenses 

Total contributions from 
City 

Employee's co ntributions 

CITY O F BOSSIER CITY, LO UISIANA 

Pension Trust Funds 

Combining Statements of Changes in Plan Net Assets 

December 31, 1998 
with comparative totals for year ended December 31, 1997 

nvestmenl income: 
Net appreciation (depreciation) 
in fair value of investments 

Interest income 
"I oral investment income 

Total additions 

Deductions: 
Pension and benefits 
M iscellaneous 

Total deductions 

Firem en's 
Pension and 
Relief Fund 

Polieem en's 
Pension and 
Relief Fund 

3,149,691 1,577,992 

93,893 
23,812 

175,770 
5,694 

7.705 

23.812 

415,953 
893.853 

,309,806 

4,601,014 

2,459,362 
12,000 

181,464 

106,314 
274.798 
381.112 

2,140,568 

,557,466 
13,387 

2,471,362 1,570,853 

2,129,652 569,715 

Bossier 
M edical 
Center 
Pension 
Fond 

828,000 

828,000 

147,997 
396,463 
544.460 

,372,460 

450,534 
24,993 
475,527 

896,933 

Exhibit (;-3 

Totals 

4,727,683 

93,893 
851,812 
175,770 
5,694 

127.169 

3,297,828 

88,917 
680,362 
131,865 
10.999 

912,143 

23,812 20,362 

670,264 
,565,114 
2,235,378 

8,114,042 

4,467,362 
50.380 

454,042 
606,400 

2.060.442 

6,290,775 

4,346,326 
49,593 

4,517,742 4,395,919 

3,596,300 1,894,856 

Fund balance reserved for 
employees pension benefits: 
Beginning of year 14,662,576 4,157,019 6,264,228 25,083,823 23,188,967 

$ 16,792,228 

See accompanying notes to combined financial statements. 

4,726,734 7,161.16 28,680,123 25.083.823 



Consolidated Sales Tax Fund 

Assets 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Sales tax receivable 

Liabilities 

A ccotmls payable 
Sales tax distributions payable 
Due to other funds: 

CITY OF BO SSIER CITY, LO UISIANA 

Fiduciary Funds 

Combining Statement of Changes in Assets 
and Liabilities - All Agency Funds 

Year ended l)ecember 31.1998 

General Fund 
Sales Tax Bond Sinking and Reserve Fund 
Parkway Sales "l'~x Bond Sinking and Reserve Fund 
Policemen's Pension and Relief Fund 
Firemen's Pension an d Relief Fund 
Sales lax Capital Improvement Fund 
Parkway Capital Projects Fund 
Jail an d Municipal Building Fund 
Fire Improvements an d Operations Fund 
Streets an d Drainage Fund 

]'axes paid under protest 
Refundable deposits 

Riverboat Gam ing 

Assets 

Cash and cash equivalents 

Liabilities 

Due to other governmental units 

Totals all A gency Funds 

Assets 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Sales tax receivable 

Liabilities 

Accounts payable 
Sales tax distributions payable 
Due to other funds 
Due to other govern mental units 
Tax es paid under protest 
Refundable deposits 

See accompan ying notes to combined financial statements. 

Balance 
January 1, 

1998 Additions 

$ 454,347 

$ 454,347 

25,982 

25,982 
380,946 
47,419 

$ 454,347 

$ 454,347 

$ 454,347 

25,982 

380,946 
47,419 

$ 454,347 

44,312,834 
42,147,740 

631,655 
18,365,310 

6,058,639 
2,925,546 
1,970,313 
1,577,992 
3,154,094 
1,797,898 
2,753,132 
944,690 
1,322,564 
1,086,392 

42,588,225 
1,124,233 
39,457 

43,751,915 

2,592,640 

2.592,640 

46,905,474 
42,147,740 
89,053,214 

631,655 
18,365,310 
23,591,260 
2,592,640 
1,124,233 
39,457 

46,344,555 

Exhibit G..4 

Balance 
Decem ber 31, 

Deductions 1998 

44,148,301 
42,147,740 
86,296,041 

618,880 

618.880 

578,068 79.569 
8.365.310 

6~58,639 
2,925,546 
1,970,313 
1,577,992 
3,154,094 
1,797,898 
2,753,132 
944,690 

1,322,564 
1,086,392 

42,534,638 
1,021,737 

43,597,382 

2,592,640 

2,592,640 

46,740.941 
42,147,740 
88.888,681 

578,068 
18,365.310 
23,591,260 
2,592,640 
1,021,737 
31,007 

46,180,022 

79,569- 
483,442 
55,869 
61g,g80 

618,880 

618,880 

79,569 

483.442 
55,869 
618,880 
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G EN ERA L 
FIX ED A SSETS 

A C C O U N T G R O U P 

This account group is established to account for all fixed assets of the 
City, other than those accounted for in the proprietary at~d pension trust 
funds. Capital outlay in funds other than the proprietary funds ar e 
recorded as expenditures of those funds at the lim e of purchase and are 
subsequently recorded, at cost, for control purposes in the General Fixed 
A ssets Account Group. In accordance w ith generally accepted accounting 
principles for m unicipalities, depreciation is not recorded in the General 
Fixed A ssets Account Group. 



CITY O F BO SSIER CITY, LO UISIANA 

General Fixed Assets Account Group 

Comparative Schedules of General Fixed Assets - By Source 

General fixed assets: 
Land and land im provem ents 
Buildings and structures 
Equipm ent and vehicles 

Decem ber 31, 1998 and 1997 

Investm ent in general fixed assets: 
Investm ent, Decem ber 31, 1978 
Subsequent to December 31, 1978: 
G eneral obligation bonds 
Federal Revenue Sharing 
Sales tax revenues 
Sales tax revenue bonds 
Com m unity Developm ent Block Grant 
Contributions from other governm ental agencies 
General Fund 
Donations 

See accom panying notes to com bined financial statem ents 

$ 8,126,237 
28,779,348 
15,694,989 

$ 52,600,574 

Exhibit It-1 

1997 

7,248,020 
26,220,222 
13,080,616 

46,548,858 

$ 2,896,020 2,896,020 

1,491,879 
2,411,744 
22,184,751 
18,429,476 

825,351 
2,026,151 
1,873,511 
461,691 

$ 52,600,574 

1,491,879 
2,411,744 
16,332,386 
18,230,125 

825,351 
2,026,151 
1,873,511 
461,691 

46,548,858 



CITY O F BO SSIER CITY, LO UISIANA 

General Fixed Assets Account Group 

Schedule of Changes in General Fixed A ssets - 
By Function and Activity 

Function and Activity 

General governm ent: 
Adm inistration 
M unicipal building 
Finance 
City garage 
Traffic engineering and 
safety 

Purchasing 
Engineering 
Personnel 

City attorney 
City Council 
Data processing 
Community development 

Public safety 
Fire 
Police 

Public works 
Culture and recreation 
Civic Center 
City Court and M arsha 
City Court 
M arshal's office 

Construction in progress 

Year ended Decem ber 3 l, 1998 

G eneral 
Fixed 
A ssets 

January 1, 
1998 Additions 

119,199 
14,566,584 

91,244 
369,406 

3,913,589 
84,886 
195,973 
63,265 
161,790 
44,124 
51,509 
637,547 
101,307 

20,400,423 

3,948,473 
5,633,834 

9,622,307 

2,775,155 
7,725,807 
5,338,485 

79,820 
205,155 

4,343 
399,864 
2,198 
11,228 

43,850 
19,936 
27,263 

30,057 
7,197 
3,837 
20,860 
2,826 

573,459 

626,467 
856,210 

1,482,677 

Exhibit H -2 

G eneral 
Fixed 
A ssets 

Decem ber 31, 
Retirem ents 1998 

2,241 

13,379 
9,501 

700 

18,715 

44,536 

162,358 
162,358 

765,161 
864,567 252,933 
11,685 

41,168 
61,157 

284,975 102,325 
401,706 

Total general fixed assets 46,548,858 

See accompanying notes to combined financial statements 

2,71],669 

6,511,543 459,827 

123,542 
14,966,448 

91,201 
380,634 

3,957,439 
91,443 
213,735 
63,265 
191,847 
51,321 
54,646 
658,407 
85,418 

20,929,346 

4,574,940 
6,367,686 
10,942,626 

3,540,316 
8,337,441 
5,350,170 

120,988 
266,312 

387,300 
3,113,375 

52,600,574 



CITY O F BO SSIER CITY, LO UISIANA 

General Fixed Assets Account Group 

Schedule of General Fixed Assets - 
By Function and Activity 

Decem ber 31, 1998 

Function and Activity Total 

General governm ent: 
Adm inistration 
M unicipal building 
Finance 
City garage 
Traffic engineering and safety 
Purchasing 
Engineering 
Personnel 
Perm its 
City attorn ey 
City Council 
Data processing 
Com m unity Developm ent 

Public safety 
Fire 
Police 

Public works 
Culture and recreation 
Civic Center 
City Court and M arsha 
City Court 
M arshal's Office 

CIP (Civic Center) 

123,542 
14,966,448 

91,201 
380,634 

3,957,439 
91,443 
213,735 
63,265 
191,847 
51,321 
54,646 
658,407 
85,418 

20,929,346 

4,574,940 
6,367,686 

10,942,626 

3,540,316 
8,337,441 
5,350,170 

120,988 
266,312 

387,300 

3,113,375 

Total general fixed assets 
allocated to functions $ 52,600,574 

Land and Buildings 
Land . and 

Im provem ents Structures 

See accom panying notes Io com bined financial statem ents. 
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1,782,250 12,716,487 

2,500 
753,489 

2,538,239 

270,015 
57,758 

327,773 

4,992,433 
68.440 

199,352 

8,126,237 

43,901 
2,681,921 

15,442,309 

958,933 
1,371,943 
2,330,876 

269,447 
2,916,763 
4,905,930 

2,914,023 

28,779,348 

Exhibit H -3 

Equipm ent 
and 

Vehicles 

123,542 
467,711 
91,201 
334,233 
522,029 
91,443 
213,725 
63,265 
191,847 
51,321 
54,646 
658,407 
85,418 

2,948,798 

3,345,992 
4,937,985 

8,283,977 

3,270,869 
428,245 
375,800 

120,988 
266,312 

387,300 

15,694,989 



 

G EN ER A L LO N G -TER M  

O BLIG A TIO N A C C O U N T 
G R O U P 

This account group represents a sum m ary of all general obligation debt of 
the City. 
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Fiscal 
Y ear 

1989 
1990 
1991 
1992 
1993 
1994 
1995 
1996 
1997 
1998 

CITY O F BO SSIER CITY, LO UISIANA 

Assessed and Estim ated Actual Value 
of Taxable Property 

Fiscal years ended Decem ber 3 I, 1989 
through Decem ber 31, 1998 

Assessed 
Value 

$ 146,247,190 
147,906,800 
150,847,340 
154,223,650 
159,654,090 
163,245,850 
184,287,480 
203,005,170 
225,760,430 
243,058,780 

Estim ated 
Actual 
Value 

1,260,137,980 
1,267,029,620 
1,292,083,040 
1,340,404,177 
1,393,412,567 
1,417,208,267 
1,582,975,867 
1,746,294,018 
1,928,061,793 
2,077,182,507 

N ote: 
A ssessed values are established by the Bossier Parish Tax A ssessor on 
January 1 of each year at approxim ately 10-15%  of assum ed m arket value. 
A revaluation of all property is required to be com pleted no less than every 
4 years. The lasl revaluation was com pleted for the roll of January 1, 1996 

Unaudited - see accom panying independent auditors' report. 

Table 4 

Percent of 
Total 

Assessed to 
Estim ated 
Actual 
V alue 

11.61%  
11.67%  
11,67%  
11.51%  
11.46%  
11.52%  
11.64%  
11.62%  
11.71%  
11.70%  
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Jurisdiction 

CITY OF BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIANA 

Computation of Direct and Overlapping Debt 

Decem ber 31, 1998 

Net Debt 

Percentage 
of D ebt 

A pplicable 
to the 
City (1) 

Table 8 

C ity's Share 
of Debt 

Total direct and overlapping debt - Bossier 
Parish, Louisiana, Bossier Parish School 
Board $ 22,601,004 67% $ 15,142,673 

Notes: 
(1) Based on 1998 assessed valuation. 
(2) As of December 31, 1998, there are no general obligation bonds recorded in 

the financial statem ents of the City. 

Unaudited - see accom panying independent auditors' report 
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Fiscal 
Y ear 

1989 $ 
1990 
1991 
1992 
1993 
1994 
1995 
1996 
1997 
1998 

CITY O F BO SSIER CITY, LO U ISIANA 

Ratio of Annual Debt Service Expenditures 
for General Bonded Debt to Total G eneral Expenditures 

Fiscal years ended Decem ber 31, 1989 
through Decem ber 31, 1998 

Principal Interest 

996,000 
660,000 
675,000 
690,000 
490,000 
490,000 
493,389 {3} 

{4} 

228,591 
188,676 
158,396 
130,182 
103,214 
77,311 
49,844 

Total 
D ebt 
Service 

1,224,591 
848,676 
833,396 
820,182 
593,214 
567,311 
543,233 

Total 
G eneral 

Expenditures {1} 

11,310,504 
12,731,766 
13,771,063 
16,334,950 
17,108,435 
18,139,723 
21,087,187 
22,854,525 
24,485,657 
25,375,376 

N otes: 
{1} Includes General Fund expenditures only, 
{2} In 1992, the Solid W aste Disposal Fund was reestablished as a department 

w ithin the General Fund. 
{3} Does not include $741,981 paid by the City to advance refund bonds. 
{4} All general bonded debt was advance refunded in 1995. 
{5} In 1995, general expenditures began including state supplemental pay. 

Unaudited - see accom panying independent auditors' report 
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{2} 

{5} 

Table 9 

Debt 
Service 
as a 

Percentage 
of Total 
G eneral 

Expenditures 

10.83 
6.67 
6.05 
5.02 
3.47 
3.13 
2.58 
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Fiscal 
Year Population 

1989 
1990 
1991 
1992 
1993 
1994 
1995 
1996 
1997 
1998 

58,886 
52,721 
53,199 
53,999 
54,507 
55,653 
55,988 
56,304 
57,141 
57,533 

CITY O F BO SSIER CITY, LO UISIANA 

Dem ographic Statistics 

Fiscal years ended Decem ber 31, 1989 
through Decem ber 31, 1998 

M edian 
Age {1} 

30.0 
30.0 
30.0 
30.6 
30.7 
30.7 
30.7 
29.8 
30.0 
31.6 

School 
Enrollment {2} 

11,355 
11,374 
11,109 
11,997 
12,188 
12,024 
12,386 
12,772 
12,915 
12,277 

Table 11 

U nem ploym ent 
Rate {1} 

N otes: 
{1} State of Louisiana Research and Statistics for 1988-1992, Shreveport, Bossier, and 

W ebster Parish Unem ploym ent and M edian Age Inform ation from the Louisiana 
Office of Statistics for 1993-1998. 

{2} Bossier Parish School Board 
{3} Per Special Census 
{4} 1990 U.S. Census 

Unaudited - see accom panying independent auditors' report. 

0 

9.8%  
7.2% 
7.3% 
7.6%  
9.8%  
7.6%  
7.3%  
6.9%  
6.3%  
5.6%  
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Taxpayer 

Horseshoe Entertainm ent 
Casino M agic 
Isle of Capri 
Southwestern Electric Power 

CITY O F BO SSIER CITY, LO UISIANA 

Principal Taxpayers 

Com pany 
BellSouth Telecom m unications 
Bank One 
Hibern ia Bank 
Bossier Plaza Associates, Inc. 
Louisiana Dow ns, Inc. 
W aI-M art 

Decem ber 31, 1998 

Type of 
Business 

1998 
Assessed 
Valuation 

Riverboat Gambling $ 22,208,570 
Riverboat Gambling 8,158,260 
Riverboat Gam bling 7,115,270 

Electric Utility 
Telephone 
Banking 
Banking 
Pierre Bossier M a 
Horse Racing 
Retail Sales 

Total am ount for ten principal taxpayers 
Total for rem aining taxpayers 

Total amount for all taxpayers 

Unaudited - see accom panying independent auditors' report 
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6,540,500 
5,373,260 
2,663,630 
2,545,410 
2,439,280 
2,269,280 
2,061,150 
61,374,610 
181,684,170 

$ 243,058,780 

Table 13 

Percentage 
of Total 
Assessed 
Valuation 

9.14%  
3.36%  
2.93%  

2.69% 
2.21%  
1.10% 
1.05%  
1.00% 
0.93%  
0.85%  
25.25%  
74.75%  

100.00% 



Dale of settlem ent 

Forln of governm ent 

Date established 

Date of incorporation 

A rea-square m iles 

CITY OF BO SSIER CITY, LO UISIANA 

M iscellaneous Statistics 

Decem ber 31, 1998 

M iles of streets: 
Paved 
Unim proved 

Police protection - number of policem en and officers 

Fire protection - num ber of firem en and officers 

Recreation: 
Parks - num ber of acres 
N um ber of playgrounds 
N um ber of picnic areas 

N um ber of street lights 

Nunlber ofwaler storage tanks 
Total capacity of water slorage tanks 
Raw water reservoir capacity 

M unicipal w ater plant: 
N um ber of accounts 
Daily average consum ption 

F, m ployees - classified, appointed, elected, and exem pt 

Unaudiled - see accompanying independent auditors' report 
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Table 14 

1843 

M ayor- Counc 

1977 

1907 

39.96 

190 

184 

170 

286 
17 
8 

4,483 

3 
5,500,000 gallons 
5,700,000 gallons 

19,350 
8,150,000 gallons 
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CITY O F BO SSIER CITY
, LO UISIANA 

Schedule of Expenditu
res of Federal Awards (Singl
e Audit) 

Decem ber 31
, 1998 

(W ith Independent Andi~ors' R
eport Thereon) 

Under provisions of state law, this 
report is ~) pubiic doc,,~m ent. A 
copy of th~ ~,~X:,o~ hat; b~en subm it- 
ted to th,:_,. ~-~u~ t,,:d, ~r :":~,,'~ewed, 
eni.itV ~nd ctl~er a#propt iate public 
off;c;~:~s -~'!,,ak r,.%'.,ort is .'~vail--_,ble for 
l:,ub',ic ,;~sp,;.,';tio,q at the Baton 
Rou2;a ",fi:ice of the l.egistadve Audi- 
lot and, where z-.pp;op,[ate., at the 
office oi tha par;sh cierk of court, 

Rreiesse Dale 



CITY OF BO SSIER CITY, LOUISIANA 

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 
(Single Audit) 

Year ended Decem ber 31, 1998 
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1900 Deposit Guaranty Tower 
333 Texas Street 
Shreveport, LA 7t'101-3692 

Independent A uditors' Report on Com pliance and on Internal Control O ver 
Financial Reporting Based on an A udit of Financial Statem ents 
Perform ed in Accordance with Governm ent Auditing Standards 

The Honorable George Dem ent, M ayor 
and M em bers of the City Council 

City of Bossier City, Louisiana: 

W e have audited the general-purpose financial statements of the City of Bossier City, Louisiana as of and 
for the year ended December 31, 1998, and have issued our report thereon dated M arch 26, 1999 (except 
for Note 17 which is dated M ay l, 1999), which includes a reference to the reports of other auditors and a 
disclaim er of opinion on the com bined and combining enterprise fund financial statements. W e conducted 
our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and the standards applicable to 
financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the 
U nited States. 

M arch 26. 1999 
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m anagem ent, State 
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1900 Deposit Guaranty Tower 
333 % ~as Street 
Shreveport, LA 71101-3692 

Independent Auditors' Report on Com pliance w ith Requirem ents 
Applicable to Each M ajor Program and Internal Control Over 

Com pliance in Accordance w ith OM B Circular A-133 

The Honorable George Dem ent, M ayor 
and M em bers of the City Council 

City of Bossier City, Louisiana: 

Com pliance 
W e have audited the compliance of the City of Bossier City, Louisiana with the types of compliance 
requirements described in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133 (?ompliance 
Supplement that are applicable to its major federal program for the year ended December 31, 1998. The 
City of Bossier City, Louisiana's major federal program is identified in the summary of auditor's results 
section of the accom panying schedule of findings and questioned costs. Com pliance w ith the requirem ents 

of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to its major federal program is the responsibility ot the 
City of Bossier City, Louisiana's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the City of 
Bossier City, Louisiana's compliance based on our audit. 

W e conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards; the 
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States; and OM B Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, 
and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncom pliance w ith the types of 

compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal 
program occurred. An audit includes exam ining, on a test basis, evidence about the City of Bossier City, 
Louisiana's compliance with those requirements and perform ing such other procedures as we considered 
necessary in the circum stances. W e believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our 
audit does not provide a legal determ ination of the City of Bossier City, Louisiana's compliance with those 
requirem ents. 

In our opinion, the City of Bossier City, Louisiana complied, in all material respects, with the requirements 
referred to above that are applicable to its major federal program for the year ended December 31, 1998. 
However, the results of our auditing procedures disclosed one instance of noncom pliance w ith those 
requirements, which is required to be reported in accordance with OM B Circular A-133 and which is 
described in the accom panying schedule of findings and questioned costs as item 98-I. 

Internal Control O ver Com pliance 
The management of the City of Bossier City, Louisiana is responsible for establishing and maintaining 
effective internal control over compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants 
applicable to federal program s. In plamfing and performing our audit, we considered the City of Bossier 
City, Louisiana's internal control over compliance with requirements that could have a direct and material 
effect on a maior federal program in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of 
expressing our opinion on com pliance and to test and report on the internal control over com pliance in 
accordance w ith O M B Circular A-133. 

llll r 



Our consideration of the internal control over com pliance would not necessarily disclose all m atlers in tile 
intern al control that m ight be m aterial w eaknesses. A m aterial weakness is a condition in w hich the design 
or operation of one or m ore of the internal control components does not reduce to a relatively low level the 
risk that noncompliance w ith applicable requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants that would 
be material in relation to a major federal program being audited may occur and not be detected within a 
tim ely period by em ployees ill the norm al course of perform ing their assigned functions. W e noted no 
m atters involving the intern al control over compliance and its operation that we consider to be m aterial 
w eaknesses. 

Schedule of Expenditn res of Federal Aw ards 
W e have audited the general-purpose financial statements of tile City of Bossier City, Louisiana as of and 
for the year ended Decem ber 31, 1998, and have issued our report thereon dated M arch 26, 1999 (except 
for Note 17 which is dated M ay l, 1999), which includes a reference to the reports of other auditors and a 
disclaimer of opinion on the combined and com bining enterprise fund financial statements. Our audit was 
performed for the purp ose of form ing an opinion on the financial statements taken as a whole. The 
accom panying schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis 
as required by OM B Circular A-133, and is not a required part of the financial statements. Such 
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements 
and ill our opinion, is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the financial statements taken as a 
w hole. 

This report is intended solely for the inform ation and use of the M ayor, City Council, management, State 
of Louisiana Legislative Auditor, and Federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not 
intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. 

M arch 26, 1999 
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CITY OF BO SSIER CITY, LOUISIANA 

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 

For the year ended December 31, 1998 

Federal G rantor/Pass-Through 
G rantor/Proeram  or Cluster 

Federal 
CFD A 
Num ber 

Federal 
Expenditures 

Departm ent of Housing and Urban Developm ent: 
Direct program - Comm unity Development 
B lock Grant 14.218 $ 482,202 

Department of Justice - passed through Louisiana 
Com m ission on Law Enforcement: 
Caddo-Bossier N arcotic Task Force 
Street Sales D isruption 
Crim inal Records Prevention 
Youth Gang Prevention 
CO PS 
Domestic Violence 
Local Law Enforcem ent 

Total Departm ent of Justice 

Departm ent of Transportation - passed through 
Louisiana H ighway Planning and Construction 
Cityw ide Signalization 
Buckle Up Louisiana '98 

Total Departm ent of Transportation 

Total expenditures of federal awards 

16.579 
16.579 
16.579 
16.579 
16.579 
16.579 
16.579 

20.205 
20.600 

See accom panying notes to schedule of expenditures of federal awards 

112,390 
2,392 
25,000 
27,031 
45,588 
18,977 

249.454 
480.832 

211,311 
930 

212,241 

1,175,275 



CITY O F BO SSIER CITY, LO UISIANA 

N otes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 

Year ended December 31, 1998 

(1) Basis of Presentation 
The accom panying schedule of expenditures of federal awards includes the federal grant activity of 
the City of Bossier City, Louisiana and is presented using the modified accrual basis of accounting. 
The inform ation in this schedule is presented in accordance w ith the requirements of OM B Circular 
A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Therefore, some 
amounts presented in this schedule may differ from amounts presented in, or used ill the preparation 
of the financial statements. 

(2) Subreeipients 
Of the federal expenditures presented in the schedule, the City of Bossier City, Louisiana provided 
federal awards to subrecipients as follows: 

A m ount 

Program 
CFDA 
N um ber 

Com m unity Developm ent Block 
Grant 14.218 

Provided 
to 

Subrecipients 

13,980 



CITY O F BOSSIER CITY, LOUISIANA 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 

(1) Summary of Auditor's Results 

Year ended Decem ber 31. 1998 

(a) The type of report issued on the financial statements unaualified ooinion, excent for a 
disclaimer of o~inion on the combined and combinin~ entem rise fund financial statements 

(b) Reportable conditions in internal control were disclosed by the audit of the Financial Statements 
none reported M aterial weaknesses: n g_o 

(c) Noncompliance which is material to the financial statements: n.o 

(d) Reportable conditions in internal control over major programs: none reported 
M aterial w eaknesses: no 

(e) The type of report issued on compliance for major programs: unqualified opinion 

(f) Any audit findings which are required to be reported under section 510(a) of OMB Circular A 
133: .y~  

(g) Major program: 
United States Department of Housing and Urban Development: 

Community Development Block Grant (CFDA Number 14.218) 

(h) Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B programs: $300,000 

(i) Auditee qualified as a low-risk auditee under section 530 of OM B Circular A-133: ygs 

(2) Findings Related to the Financial Statements Reported in Accordance with Government Auditing 
Standards: 

N one 

(3) Findings and Questioned Costs relating to Federal Awards 

Item : 98-1 

Criteria or specific requirement: The City's CDBG grant (24 CFR, Section 570.902) requires that 
sixty days prior to the end of the grantee's current program year, the am ount of entitlem ent grant 
funds available to the recipient under grant agreements but undisbursed by the U.S. Treasury be no 
m ore ttmn 1.5 tim es the entitlement grant amount for its current program year. 

Condition: The City's CDBG unexpended balance exceeds the 1.5 ratio 

Questioned costs: None 



CITY OF BO SSIER CITY, LO UISIANA 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs, continued 

Context: N ot applicable 

Year ended Decem ber 31, 1998 

Effect: Failure to m eet this regulatory requirement could result in the deobligation of CDBG funds
. 

Cause: Unanticipated changes in program created a delay in expending funds
. 

Recommendation: The City should implement procedures to m onitor the unexpended balance of its 
CDBG funds to determ ine if funds are being spent in a timely manner. 

M anagem ent's response: 
A) Name of Contact Responsible: 

Bob Brown, Com m unity Developm ent Coordinator 

B) Corrective Action Planned: 
O ur strategy for addressing this issue is as follow s: 

1. Accelerate the draw down of funds that have been spent. 

2. Finish projects where money has been obligated and draw dow~l funds. 

3. Reallocate funds from projects where the demand is not as great as first anticipated to 
projects where there is a current need and demand. 

4. Reallocate funds from projects that have been completed but have some funds remaining 
to viable products. 

5. Increase efforts to publicize program s where the demand has not developed as expected
. 

6. Change our single-family owner occupied housing rehab program requirements back to a 
forgivable loan for single fam ily own er occupied housing rehabilitation applications for 
persons that are not handicapped and elderly. Additionally

, we would change the 
requirem ent, in w hich, a person can only receive a single-fam ily rehab once to the 
requirement that they can receive it again after I 0 years, 

C) Anticipated Completion Date: 
Decem ber 31, 1999 



1900 Deposit Guaranty Tower 
333 Texas Street 
Shreveport, LA 71101-3692 

M arch 26. 1999 

C O N FID EN TIAL 

The Honorable George Dement, M ayor 
and M em bers of the City Council 

City of Bossier City , Louisiana: 

W e have audited the financial statements of the City of Bossier City, Louisiana (the "City") for the year 
ended December 31, 1998, and have issued our report thereon dated M arch 26, 1999 (except for Note 17 
which is dated M ay 1, 1999), which includes a reference to the reports of other auditors and a disclaimer of 
opinion on the com bined and com bining enterprise fund financial statements. In planning and perform ing 
our audit of the financial statem ents of the City, we considered internal control in order to deternfine our 
auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements and not to 
provide assurance on intern al control. W e have not considered internal control since the date of our report. 

During our audit, we noted certain matters involving internal control and other operational m atters that arc 
presented for your consideration. These comments and recommendations, all of which bave been 
discussed w ith the appropriate m em bers of m anagement, are intended to im prove internal control or result 
in other operating efficiencies and are sum m arized as follows: 

YEAR 2000 

The City has organized a cityw ide effort to address Year 2000 issues related to its computer systems and 
other electronic equipm ent. At the tim e of our audit the City had com pleted an inventory of com puter 
systems and other electronic equipment that may be affected by the Year 2000 issue and that arc necessary 
to conducting City operations. The City had completed the awareness and assessment stage of work with 
respect to its m ission critical system s w hereby a plan has been established for dealing with these issues and 
system s have been identified which are in need of Year 2000 compliance work. The City is currently 
w ithin the rem ediation stage, during which changes are being m ade to system s and equipment. 



Tile Honorable George Dem ent, M ayor 
and M em bers of the City Council 

M arch 26, 1999 
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It appears that resources (personnel) are available and dollars are budgeted to timely complete significant 
aspects of the City 's remediation effort. However, given the short time frame, failure to set and meet strict 
deadlines could result in delays in the City's Year 2000 project. W e encourage the City to closely monitor 
the progress of its Year 2000 project and the deadlines for completion. This should include all aspects of 
its contingency plans in the event systems are not Year 2000 com pliant. 

Our discussions, which included lim ited inquiries in connection with the Year 2000 issue, were not 
designed to, and do not provide any assurance that the Year 2000 issues which m ay exist have been 
identified, on the adequacy of the City's rem ediation plans related to the Year 2000 financial or 
operational issues or whether the City is or will become Year 2000 com pliant. Year 2000 compliance is 
the responsibility of the City 's officials and management. 

Federal G rant Revenues and Expenditures --  The City accounts for various grants in the State and 
Federal Grants Special Revenue Fund. These grants are on a reimbursement basis whereby the City m ust 
first expend funds and then request a reimbursement. At the end of the year, any amounts expended but 
not reim bursed should be accrued as a receivable if amounts are considered allowable under the grant. As 
such, the revenue and expenses should always be in agreement. During our audit, we noted that some 
accrued revenues w ere not supported by reim bursem ent requests. 

W e recom mend that revenues and expenditures for these grants be closely m onitored to ensure that all 
expenditures and revenues are properly recorded and requested. For reimbursement grants, proper 
monitoring should ensure that revenues equal expenditures. W hile these differences were not significant, 
the City should be aware that all allowable expenditures under the grant are reim bursed. 

CO M M ENTS REPEATED FRO M  PR IO R Y EAR 

Cash and Investm ents --  The City is handling investment income on a cash basis and allocates 

investment income (discounts/premiums) to the various funds upon receipt. Given this treatment, the 
allocation of investment income could be impacted by the timing of the receipt of the cash. As long as 
investments are maintained in shorter-term maturities, this treatm ent should not differ significantly from 
the accrual basis. However, this situation should be monitored and if the City begins to consistently invest 
in longer term investm ents, a change in policy m ay be necessary if the impact becom es m aterial. 

Data Processing Disaster Planning --  The City should develop a formal agreem ent with an alternative 
data processing site to provide an emergency processing site to be used in the event of a disaster. 
Additionally, the City should test the disaster plan with the alternative site. W e recommend this test be 
performed annually to m inim ize downtime should a disaster occur. 
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It should be appreciated that our audit procedures are designated primarily to enable us to form  an opinion 
on the financial statements and, therefore, m ay not bring to light all weaknesses in system s and procedures 
which may exist. W e aim, however, to use our knowledge of the City 's organization gained during our 
work to m ake comments and suggestions which we hope w ill be useful to you. 

W e would like to take this opportunity to ackn owledge the courtesy and assistance extended to us by the 
personnel of the City during the course of our audit. 

This report is intended solely for the inform ation and use of the Council, management and the State of 
Louisiana Legislative Auditor and federal awarding agencies and is not intended to be and should not be 
used by anyone other than these specified parties. 

Very truly yours 



June 30, 1999 

CITY OF BOSSIER CITY 
P.O. BOX S337 

BOSSIER CITY, LO UISiANA 7|t71 5337 

YEAR 2000 

W e intend to closely monitor the progress of our Year 2000 project and contingency plans. We have made 
substantial progress in updating computer system s and equipm ent and should have our plan in place by 
year-end. 

W e intend to closely m onitor grant revenues an d expenditures to ensure that all expenditures an d revenues 
are properly recorded and that all allowable expenditures under the gran t are reim bursed. 

W e continue to monitor th is situation and in the event the impact becomes material will evaluate the need 
for a change in policy. 

W e are currently working on a formal agreement with an outside third party to provide an  emergency 
processin g site to be used in the event of a disaster. 


